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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  Can everyone please get seated?  The hour of six o’clock has arrived.  I’d very much appreciate it.  Sergeants, can you have everyone get seated?


I want to, number one, bring the Senate Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley to order.  But before we begin, I first and foremost would like to thank all of the firefighters, police officers, healthcare workers, and local residents who have worked so hard to minimize the harmful effects of this particular fire.  I would also like to thank the participants and those who have voluntarily agreed to come and testify here tonight.  Also, I’d like to thank all other individuals who have worked with our staff, this committee, to get a better understanding of the problems—the potential health risk—associated with what has been properly called the Crippen fire in West Fresno.


While I appreciate the assistance from those who have cooperated with this committee, I’ve also been somewhat dismayed by the actions of a few individuals, especially those officials who have privately and quite publicly questioned my integrity on this particular issue.  I find it odd that asking a series of questions, opening the issue for public review—and, quite frankly, it’s been a month since this fire started—I guess I’m a little concerned that such a review would illicit such a strong reaction from some officials.  I can just imagine how a regular citizen from West Fresno must feel attempting to get similar answers to some basic questions on the fire and health dangers it posted to them.


Please rest assured that we will not be deterred in asking and getting answers to some of the most basic questions.  You know what they are:  How did the fire start?  How could it have been prevented?  How long did it take firefighters to contain the fire or, for that matter, respond to emergency calls?  Questions such as:  Did officials do everything in their power to contain the fire, control the potentially dangerous smoke caused by the blaze, and were Fresno residents adequately protected and treated by public health officials?  There are, of course, lingering health problems and issues associated with this fire.  We want to talk about that tonight as well.


In addition to hearing from the city, the county, and other officials tonight, the committee will hear from regular citizens:  the folks who live near the Crippen disposal site.  These citizens will testify about their attempt to alert city officials about the danger that the Crippen site posed in their neighborhood’s health and welfare months prior to this devastating fire.  The question said simply:  Why weren’t these folks’ concerns addressed?  I don’t know, but I think tonight they will have the opportunity to tell us exactly why they think they weren’t addressed.  


In the end, I think we have a responsibility not only to the people of southwest Fresno but the entire people of the Greater Fresno area who, for weeks, were exposed to smoke and foul air.  We have a responsibility to get to the truth on this matter, to better understand how we can prevent such a terrible and long-burning fire from occurring again in the future; and, of course, we have a responsibility to assure the folks of Fresno that safeguards will be put in place to ensure that they will never again have to face the agonizing and potentially dangerous smoke and fumes that they had to live with for days on end as a result of this fire.


With that being said, I would like to thank all of you again for being here tonight.  Particularly, I’d like to thank the mayor and his staff for allowing us to utilize this facility.  It’s a very nice facility.  There’s so many gadgets up here, if I turn it off I’ll try to get through it.  But I do want to thank the mayor particularly.


And I would say that we are under some time constraints.  We have gaveled this hearing exactly at 6 p.m.  We have our Senate sergeants here who are taking transcripts of this hearing.  Those transcripts will, from our part, be available to the public within a week.  If you’re interested in getting a transcript from this particular hearing, please call our office:  our Fresno office, our Sacramento office, or our Bakersfield office.


With that, let’s proceed down the agenda.  We’d like to have our mayor, Alan Autry, the mayor of Fresno, please make some statements.


Mr. Mayor.


MAYOR ALAN AUTRY:  Thank you, Senator Florez and members of the Air Quality Committee.


We look forward to participating in this forum tonight.  We’re certainly on the same team.  We all breathe the same air, and we all suffer the consequences when that air is not breathable.  


Having said that, I hope we understand here what we have already done, the city of Fresno.  This is a fire unlike anything we had ever encountered.  In fact, we are not only open to the truth, we are committed to finding the truth because the truth would allow us to set better policy in the future.  We’re always looking to get better.


Again, we believe the city of Fresno under the circumstances—again, a fire that was very difficult not only to fight but to define in its early stages.  We had never, again as I said, experienced anything like this.  It was identified early on that water, which is traditionally what you put on a fire, did not do the trick.  After that, when we found out we were dealing with a spontaneous combustion and the type of materials that were burning there, another factor crept in besides the smoke that was emitting of that, and that was personal safety of those fighting that fire.  We found out very quickly in our research that firemen have, in the past, fallen and been critically injured in these areas.  We actually had a heavy equipment operator on that pile—his tractor tip over—so we knew we were dealing with something different, Senator.


I want to commend the state agencies, the federal agencies, and, in particular, our city manager and our fire chief who, I felt, acted in a very tough environment very quickly and expeditiously to put this fire out.  Again, I was hit with some criticism.  A person I respect a great deal said, “Well, you know, if this would have been an earthquake or a flood, you would have moved quicker.”  And my response was “Yeah, we would have known what we were up against too.”  There was two kinds of decisions there in terms of public safety, and that was the quick reckless decision and the right decisions, and I believe the right decisions were made along the way.


So, I want to again open up our process.  We’re committed at the city level with our task force, which I think is the most open task force ever created at the city level, consisting of ten community members and a deputy mayor and a city councilman, Senator.  So, we’re committed to the openness of this.  We look forward to the testimony.


In my closing comment here, I would urge and encourage the committee here to realize that as important as this is to the state and how personal this is to the state, this happened in our own backyard, and nobody wants to find the truth any more than the mayor in this city—myself—and this task force.  And I hope that will be considered in not only the line of questioning but the tone of the questioning as well.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Mayor, a couple of questions if I could.  You mentioned the task force, and I want to see if I can get you to answer some questions on this.  


What criteria are you utilizing in order to select the members of the task force?


MAYOR AUTRY:  Well, first of all, Senator, we needed a guiding force at City Hall.  We needed somebody who knew where the departments were, who to call in, and that’s why, naturally, the councilperson in that particular district—Cynthia Sterling—was a natural choice.  And the second highest ranking fellow here at City Hall—the deputy mayor—I put on that.  Then we began the process of an outreach to find community members who, one, had a vested interest in this—vested interest as we all did—but who lived in the area; so, ones who directly would be hit firstly by this.  We also looked for folks that may have had historically an interest in that area and had brought it forth to the council before.  We found that in, in particular, a fellow name of Harlan Kelly; so, he was a natural for a member of this community-dominated task force.  And we looked at people that had built up a record of respect in a broad segment of the community.  You can’t be perfect in these things.  You try to do the best you can to find people that there’s a certain sense of unanimity as to their integrity and their character, and that was basically the criteria that we put on that; and also in terms of some past experience that would be able to help us in this process:  personal experience.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Mayor, also in terms of the task force, there’s been some editorials and some public writings in terms of the independence of the task force, and you’re the one putting this together.  I guess my question:  Do you believe that this task force will be independent and truly able to ask the tough questions of city officials?


MAYOR AUTRY:  Absolutely, because I don’t know how much more independent you can get by having ten community members who will be privy to everything, who will be steering this process.  And you have two (quote/unquote) “politicians” in there that are there for a purpose, and that is to help with the process.  Again, it may be out there, Senator.  I have never, in my day, seen a task force look at a city issue, an in-depth city issue, with all the doors of city government open to them that had this kind of makeup as far as community involvement, and that was number one on my mind when we put it together.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Mayor, thank you very much.


MAYOR AUTRY:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Folks, we’re going to move on to the health effects of the fire.  We’d like to hear from Kimberly Williams, a Fresno resident.


Kimberly, nice to see you again, and thank you for testifying at our health hearing of this committee in Sacramento just a couple of weeks ago.


What I’m going to do to all the witnesses, Kimberly, if I could, is rather than you have an opening statement, I’d like to ask you some questions and see if you can answer them.


The first is, obviously, your son, Kerry, has been prominently involved in these issues given his asthma, and I guess my question is:  How did the fire affect your son’s condition?


MS. KIMBERLY WILLIAMS:  The fire’s affected my son’s condition where he’s missed a couple of days of school.  I’m constantly going to the pediatrician, back and forth.  I’m fighting with Medi-Cal now because they currently told me that Advair and Singulair now are not going to be covered.


I have sixteen immediate members of my family that suffer from chronic asthma—sixteen—starting from my great-grandmother down to nephews and nieces and cousins.  It’s affected the family greatly.


Just to let you know, I went to a charma, and I asked him. . . . I wanted him to see into Kerry’s future.  He told me, “The air is bad.”  He told me, I don’t move, my son will not live to see his fiftieth birthday.  That struck a very deep cord with me:  fifty.  He’s supposed to bury me.  I’m not supposed to bury him.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, obviously, Kerry’s condition is an ongoing issue, and as you testified in Sacramento, it’s a real struggle for you, particularly on a day-to-day basis.  But when this fire broke out, what changed in the day-to-day in terms of Kerry when this particular fire broke out?  Can you give us your perspective on that?


MS. WILLIAMS:  What changed in day-to-day is I’ve missed a lot of work, like I told you up in Sacramento.  It’s caused me a lot of anxiety.  I’m now taking medication for depression.  I’m taking medication for anxiety.  I get very frustrated with Kerry’s condition because I thought for a while it’s hereditary.  It’s not.  It’s not at all.  I just don’t understand sometimes why my kid, why my son, and I think I speak for a lot of the single parents out there who are struggling with their children who have asthma.  It’s a constant ongoing basis; it’s a problem.  We either decide whether we go to work or we stay home with our sick children.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, in terms of Kerry’s health—let me skip over to this particular fire again—did you receive any notification from the city or any agency in regard to what to do with Kerry given his asthma?


MS. WILLIAMS:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, you did not.  What would you have expected in terms of notification?  What would a parent with the kids with asthma expect given this fire broke out January 11th, 12th, 13th.  It’s been about a month now, a little over a month, and so, I guess my question to you is:  As somebody who is caring for a child with asthma, what would you have expected, then, in terms of notification?


MS. WILLIAMS:  I would have expected to have been told keep my child indoors.  Tell me what to do:  Do I need to see Dr. Baz immediately within twenty-four hours?  Do I need to take him to his pediatrician?  What do I do?  I cannot keep my son in a cocoon.  I cannot keep him in a bubble.  He has to go to school.  I don’t want to be _________.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And did you have to change any of the amount of his medication due to this fire?


MS. WILLIAMS:  Kerry’s currently on eleven different type of asthma medications.  Eleven!  Eleven.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, in terms of the fire affecting his studies, you mentioned missed days at school.  Have you talked to other parents that have been. . . . in essence, kids missing school because of this that have asthma?


MS. WILLIAMS:  Oh, definitely.  When he misses school, I can’t begin to tell you how far a seventh grader can get behind.  They’ve got five subjects, five different classes.  The instructors, they understand that the kids are sick, but they also have to be able to keep up with their schoolwork.  My son is a B/C-average student.  For him to keep his GPA up, he has to be able to get to class.  He has to be able to get his schoolwork.  If he misses so many days, he will be held back in seventh grade.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me just ask you one last question if I could.  What do you think that your elected representatives could do to prevent future situations like the fire?  Obviously, the mayor mentioned combustion things happen.  But what would you expect from your. . . . and I’m talking about myself, the mayor, any elected official, your city council members.  You know, you’re a resident with a child with asthma spending, as I remember, $320 a month plus every month.  Given these situations and our air issues which are much larger than the Crippen fire, what would you expect?  Give us your perspective on that.


MS. WILLIAMS:  I expect honesty.  I expect them to be truthful with me.  If they want me to vote them into the office, they have to be honest with me.  They have to tell me this is what needs to be done.  When something happens, just give me the facts!  State the simple facts on what I need to do, because as quick as you can be voted into office, you can be voted out.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You and I were at the same emergency meeting, I remember, when we had this.  What were your perceptions of that meeting?  I think there were very few citizens, a few elected officials there.  I know Phil Larson and some folks were there.  But what were your perspectives on that particular meeting, the very first meeting?


MS. WILLIAMS:  I felt there were not enough answers.  And I want to tell the community of Fresno, especially you single mothers out there with children with asthma:  you need to come to meetings like this.  You need to let your voice be heard.  If you do not, your children will suffer.  We can take a stand as parents, whether we are single or not, with children with asthma.  If you want to know what’s going on, you need to come to city council meetings.  It starts not only from the councilmen but all the way to the state to the federal government.  Just like I said, we are the government.  We can vote these people in, and we can vote them out if they are not hearing our voices, if they’re not doing what we want done.  Simple.  And that’s it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly, thank you.  Thank you for coming tonight.


MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can we have Dr. Ken Bird please come up?  Interim health officer of Fresno County and chairman of the Public Health Group for the Fresno fire.


Dr. Bird, thank you for joining us.


DR. KEN BIRD:  Senator, thank you for having me here.  On my right is Mr. Brad Maggy.  He’s the assistant director of Community Health.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for joining us as well.


Obviously, this is not a forum, this is a hearing, so let me begin with some questions for you.  Could you give us, the committee, an overall on the effects the fires had on the health of residents of Fresno County?


DR. BIRD:  Yes.  Be glad to.


The Marks/Nielsen fire that began burning here on January 11th, 2003, was determined by EPA, Department of Health Services, and office of Environmental Health Hazard Appraisal experts not to be emitting acutely toxic substances in concentrations that would have necessitated evacuation beyond the fire’s perimeter.  It was determined, however, that the combustion was emitting  PM 10 and PM 2.5 pollutants into the air which add significantly to the already high concentrations of these pollutants found in our air during this time of the year.  Concentrations of these were certainly higher in areas in close proximity to the fire.  Such pollutants at these concentrations are known to cause acute inflammatory and irritation effects on the respiratory and cardiovascular system, especially in susceptible populations; irritated throats; worsening of hay fever and allergy symptoms; increased susceptibility to sinusitis, bronchitis, and pneumonia; exacerbations of asthma and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.  And, in some instances, premature death in individuals with respiratory or cardiac conditions are known to occur at acute exposures to these pollutants.  Some of these effects were seen in many of the approximately 200 residents seen at the health screening sponsored by Assemblywoman Reyes and Councilwoman Sterling on February 1st.  


Inquiries made by our . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I ask you a question on that, the health screenings?


DR. BIRD:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who sponsored those?  The county, the city, or the state?


DR. BIRD:  Councilwoman Sterling and Assemblywoman Reyes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But who paid for it?


DR. BIRD:  I think it was primarily volunteers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Volunteers.  Okay.  Well, we’ll ask Councilmember Sterling that question, but I just wondered if you knew.  Did you participate in that?


DR. BIRD:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right, go ahead.


DR. BIRD:  Inquiries made by our department staff revealed that pre-hospital EMS calls and emergency room visits in general were not greater during this period than during the same period last year.  However, there is anecdotal evidence that local physician and urgent care visits were higher and that outpatient breathing treatments for asthma were increased.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And this is because of the fire.


DR. BIRD:  It’s anecdotally believed that to be true.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, there were increased ER visits, increased . . .


DR. BIRD:  Not increased ER visits, but I believe probably local physician and urgent care centers might have been more impacted.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Were there increased ER visits?


DR. BIRD:  Pardon?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Were there increased ER visits?


DR. BIRD:  Not according to what our staff was able to determine from hospital responses.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


In terms of the citizens’ concern for the health of the fire, was there a hotline that folks could call?  We just heard one resident say more information is always better information.  I think that’s exactly what was said.  Is there a hotline the county has, the city has, somewhere that during a fire of this sort people can call and get immediate answers or get someone on the line to talk about it’s a good day to go outside or not?  I know we utilize our schools for just about everything.  I know Santiago Wood’s going to come tell us.  But if you’re not going to school—it’s a Sunday and it’s a Saturday—then how do people get the word from the Health Department perspective?


DR. BIRD:  From the Health Department perspective, there is an emergency response team line that’s available 24 hours a day.  I can’t remember the number right off the top of my head.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when was that number created, and when was it readily available, and how was it advertised to the residents of this city and county?


DR. BIRD:  If you don’t mind, I’m going to have Mr. Maggy answer that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.  Can you state your name for the record also?


MR. BRAD MAGGY:  Yes.  Brad Maggy.  


Senator, the primary focus for citizen inquiries would not be through that line.  That line is principally one that would be used for emergency response for a situation in which during off-duty hours a crisis occurs, in which resources of the county have to be marshaled in order to take care of something like that.


I think what Dr. Bird is referring to is the Air District, and I would defer it to them.  I believe they have a line that’s available to citizens in those instances where they have concerns about air quality and the effects of air quality.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  My question is to you as health officials.  You’re the health officer of the county?  Is there any hotline, any way that Kimberly Williams could call and find out if her doctor’s not around and the school’s out of session and the school nurse isn’t available, is there some way to figure out how to get help if a fire broke out?


MR. MAGGY:  The Health Department does not have a hotline per se, certainly, if that’s your question.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you believe that would be helpful?


MR. MAGGY:  Certainly.  We’re open to considering everything with new experiences.  So, it could well be.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have any hotlines?


MR. MAGGY:  Not hotlines per se.  During our offices hours, we certainly have access to the phone numbers of the Health Department, to public health nursing—direct lines—those kinds of things.  But I would not want to characterize it and mislead you that it’s a hotline.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, go ahead.  Dr. Bird, go ahead.  Unless you’re done.


DR. BIRD:  I just had one more quick statement if I may.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure, go ahead.


DR. BIRD:  The Air Quality Index in our area remained in the unhealthy range during the entire time the fire burned and has since returned to the moderate range and more closely resembles the AQI readings of the areas just north and south of us.  Even this, however, is probably responsible for a number of the symptoms and illness exacerbations I have mentioned previously.


Thanks, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Before you go, let me just get your reaction.  Local officials, obviously—reading through some of the press accounts—have been criticized for downplaying the health risk of the fire to local residents.  In fact, our city manager who’s sitting right there said publicly that there was no health risk offsite.  Were you consulted before that statement was made, and do you agree with that statement?


DR. BIRD:  I don’t recall being consulted; no, sir.  Certainly, there were health effects from this fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you be the proper people to consult if there were health issues involved with this fire?  Would there be other people within the county or city that might be consulted before such a statement is made?


DR. BIRD:  Certainly, we were a resource available.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you weren’t asked.


DR. BIRD:  No, sir, I don’t remember being asked.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Another question I have, in terms of the mayor’s task force. . . . are you members of the mayor’s task force?


DR. BIRD:  I am.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what do you see as your primary role on that task force given you’re health officer?


DR. BIRD:  Well, as I told the task force when I was asked why I was there actually, I just told them I had an interest in this not ever happening again; it’s dangerous for the people of this community.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, but the task force is having a report out March 25th.  I’m not asking you to tell us what the task force said.  You’re a task force member, and my question is:  As health officer, what value do you believe you bring to this task force?


DR. BIRD:  Well, I believe if there are questions related to the medical aspect of this, to the health aspect of this, or even if there’s questions maybe related to the health department aspect of this, I would be a resource to them for that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given your assessment—your survey, if you will—of ERs and others that you mentioned earlier, do you know whether or not pharmacies ran out of medications to treat patients with respiratory illness during this fire?


DR. BIRD:  I had people say something to that effect, and I had staff call around about, I think, seven or eight pharmacies in the area.  None of them admitted to experiencing any shortage of medications, and I specifically asked for oral steroids.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Bird, thank you very much.


DR. BIRD:  Thank you, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Appreciate it.


Dr. Santiago Wood, Superintendent, Fresno Unified School District.  Dr. Wood, good seeing you again.  Thank you for joining the committee.


DR. SANTIAGO WOOD:  Thank you very much, Senator.  I have with me one of our principals from our middle school in the area, and I’d like her to speak specifically to the impact on students and staff and some of the precautions that were taken by our school officials.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.


DR. WOOD:  I’ll make some global comments prior to her.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely, Dr. Wood.  And I’m going to ask some questions.  We’ll allow you to make a statement if you’d like to tell us that, and then I’ve got some questions for you as well.  


Please come up and state your name for the record.  And thank you for joining us.


MS. TANIS DeRUOSI:  Good evening.  I’m Tanis DeRuosi, and I’m the principal at Computech Middle School. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Wood, I guess, generally, the effect the fire had on students in Fresno Unified—your perspective.


DR. WOOD:  Certainly.  We have five schools within that—seven schools actually—within that immediate area:  five elementary schools, a middle school, and high school.  Approximately 5,000 student were impacted, and approximately 400 staff members were within the immediate area of the fire.  


We, in fact, noticed a decrease of our attendance rate for at least four weeks of that initial incident.  What we also observed is the fact that several of our staff members were also absent—an increase in the absence rate.  One employee who works in our cafeteria program was out for a week, and we understood that she was rushed to the hospital with some upper respiratory challenges.

We have a full-time nursing director and approximately 68 nurses in the district of 82,000 students, and the nursing director kept the schools up to date with daily bulletins we have posted on our district-wide web page every day.  We also have an administrator of environmental issues, and we do work with the EPA and others to get an update on the wind direction and, also, the environmental impacts, and that’s posted on a daily basis on our web page.  And we also send appropriate communication out to all of our schools.  So, from a global perspective, it certainly impacted our schools and 5,000 students—approximately seven schools.


I’d like to have Ms. Tanis DeRuosi talk about—and she’s speaking on behalf of all the principals—what actually took place at the schools on a day-to-day  basis; what precautions they took.



SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Wood, thank you, and you did very much sound more like a meteorologist rather than a superintendent, so let’s go ahead and hear from a principal.  I do appreciate all the work you have to do with the air.  I think it makes the point.


MS. DeRUOSI:  Good evening.  I am in a middle school.  I have approximately 750 students, and for approximately four weeks, we worked under the direction of the district, and we were on what we call “lockdown,” where students could not go outside because the air quality was so poor.  We were unable to pursue our seasonal sports because they could not be outside.  P.E. was not conducted outside at all.  There were several days where we didn’t even allow activity within the gymnasium.  At lunchtime the students were required to be inside.  I have a very generous and caring staff, so the teachers opened their rooms, gave up their lunch hours, so students, in fact, would have a place to be, as well as the library, etc.  


Several of my teachers did complain about headaches, trouble breathing, hot throats, chest pains in the evening, back pains, I guess, from breathing the air.  On about the third day, I decided maybe I’d better go take a look at what everybody was talking about.  I could smell it, and I could see it—the smoke that is—so I did take a drive out to the Crippen fire.  And I will tell you, I have never seen anything like that in my life.  I don’t know what I expected, but it was just an immense pile that kind of went on for blocks.  So, it gave me a perception when I came back to the school.  


I did have two students who needed to be on home instruction at this time because of upper respiratory and asthma concerns.  My attendance did decrease.  I am a Blue Ribbon school.  My attendance tends to be around 97 percent.  It had dipped to 95 percent for the last four or five weeks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who directed you to restrict playground time?


MS. DeRUOSI:  That was a protocol followed by the district.  As Dr. Wood said, EPA updates us, the Health Department updates us, and through the day I would get group-wise or e-mails from them, you know, “This is the day that we need to restrict playtime.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How do parents play into this?  How do you notify parents?  How do parents know, really, you guys are checking all this before school?


MS. DeRUOSI:  Parents are very astute; they watch the news, they hear the radios.  I was on the phone quite a bit, and as Dr. Wood said, we put everything on or district web site, so they just needed to click in.  But if they had questions, they just called.  We talked about it with the students.  It was on the daily bulletin.  We would inform them, “This is a lockdown day.  We need to restrict activities,” and even to the point where we did release them to go outside, we were very careful with our high-risk students.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And high risk you would term…?


MS. DeRUOSI:  Students who have upper respiratory chronic asthma.  And as you know, the schools do have a large number of students in the valley with asthma concerns.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


Dr. Wood, just a couple of questions for you.  In terms of the dollar amount, do you have an idea of how much this might have cost the district in terms of average daily attendance, personnel, or treating students in this particular fire?  A ballpark number?


DR. WOOD:  We don’t, but on the average, we have our greatest attendance challenges on Monday and Friday, and we did see a noticeable increase on those two days.  But we have not quantified a dollar amount.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Wood, we were talking about the task force.  Do you know if there’s any school representatives on this task force?


DR. WOOD:  I don’t.  Normally, the protocol is that if any of our employees are participating, that they are required to notify my office.  I have not received any information that any of our . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Opinion only:  Do you think it may add value given your role in terms of kids being in school?


DR. WOOD:  Absolutely.  And you heard from one of our principals, ____________.  That’s the lady that sees the children every single day.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, in terms of benefits to the community to have school personnel involved in this task force, what would that add from your perspective?


DR. WOOD:  Well, certainly, I think the at-risk condition of our youngsters and the history of the high incidence of upper respiratory illnesses and the fact that we experience, on the average, eleven hundred to thirteen hundred absences a day—and we’ve studied this very carefully—we have determined that the second leading cause of our absences is due to upper respiratory illnesses; the first one being a head lice problem.  So, they’re both medical conditions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you’re on the front line with our kids.


DR. WOOD:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I mean, most of the day you’re the folks that are watching their condition.  You understand it.  You’ve been through a couple of different fires, I imagine; not just Crippen.  Is that correct?


DR. WOOD:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you have some sort of protocol in place.


DR. WOOD:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And, I guess, given that you have a protocol and you’re not on the task force, I think I hear you saying there’ll be some value—opinion only—on being on the task force.


Let me ask a broader question.  Has the city of Fresno ever included you in any meetings in terms of this fire?


DR. WOOD:  Well, not the fire, but we have a good relationship with all of our interagency groups.  I sit on the Interagency Council . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you ever been to an emergency meeting?


DR. WOOD:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ever been invited to an emergency meeting?


DR. WOOD:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ever been invited to participate in any discussions on this fire in terms of coordination?


DR. WOOD:  No, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.


DR. WOOD:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have Dr. Malik Baz, asthma specialist.  Thank you for joining us.  I know you’re very busy.


Dr. Baz, just simply, how long have you practiced here in the Central Valley?


DR. MALIK BAZ:  Twenty-one years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that time here, have you seen an increase in the amount of instances of respiratory illnesses?


DR. BAZ:  Before I say anything, I just want to qualify my statements.  It’s all anecdotal.  There’s no scientific basis on it, so I just want to make sure that it’s not taken as scientific.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s your asterisk—real small and ten-point, right?


DR. BAZ:  Since I’ve been here, allergy/asthma has been increasing every year.  So, I can say the statement fire definitely causes the problem in that critical time.  But general incidence of allergy and asthma has been increasing during this time, especially during the last four or five years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you see more patients, obviously, on bad days or good days, or is it just kind of a constant flow of patients?


DR. BAZ:  I see patients every day.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Bad air days, do you see more patients than good?


DR. BAZ:  Specifically related to the fire, we saw a number of patients.  Normally, we are slow that time of the year.  We did see a number of patients—an increase in the number of patients—from that critical time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, I guess you’re heading right where I’m going, and that is, was there a difference in your patient load in the past month due to this particular fire?


DR. BAZ:  See, my practice is on the north side of town, but we saw a lot of patients from that critical area who came specifically increased in their allergy symptoms, asthma symptoms.  I think Dr. Bird and Dr. Wood mentioned about it:  sore throat, tightness in their chest, burning in the chest, which was specifically related to the fire.


I just want to add, it’s not true only for this fire.  Any fire when we saw in the past, whether it happens in the ______________, one or two days later, we got the increase in seeing . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, there’s an increase no matter what type of fire incidence.


DR. BAZ:  I’m saying . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would that include ag burning?  I mean, ag burning occurs every day or every good day.  Every time it’s sunny it occurs.  And so, do you see an incidence of more folks coming in on ag burning days?


DR. BAZ:  Last several days _________________ normal. . . . that’s considered normal. I’m talking about the big fires, like when it occurs in the Sierra Mountains.  There’s always an increased incidence.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re an asthma specialist.  Do you have any opinion on some of these burn days, while I’ve got you here?  I know we’re talking about Crippen fire, but I’d like to get your opinion on that.


DR. BAZ:  If I can do, I would like to go away from that area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


Now, you mentioned the spikes, if you will.  Any shortages—the same question for Dr. Bird—any shortages of medication at this time that you’ve experienced at pharmacies or any of the folks that distribute asthma . . .


DR. BAZ:  I think there’s not a shortage of medication.  Kimberly mentioned a lot of medications are not available to the folks who really need it, and the problem is not only that medications are not available, they were not available to the people who really need it, and a lot of insurances were not covering it, especially the Medi-Cal.  So, that was the bigger problem.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Kimberly made that point very loud and clear in Sacramento and also here tonight, and I think, obviously, it’s something we have to work on.


In terms of new clients as a result of the fire, any increase in new clients?


DR. BAZ:  My practice has definitely gone up.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Due to the fire or just due to the bad air?


DR. BAZ:  My practice is generally going up because of general pollution in the air.  As I mentioned earlier, at that critical time we saw. . . . because it was so overwhelming of the old patients coming in, we were unable to accommodate the new patients at that time, that many.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Doctor, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


DR. BAZ:  Thanks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have Evan Shipp, supervising meteorologist, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.


Evan, thank you for joining the committee tonight.


MR. EVAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Senator Florez.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just very quickly, what was the Air Pollution Control District’s role in the fire at the Crippen site?


MR. SHIPP:  Basically, we were acting in a support role.  We were issuing twice daily a particulate matter forecast.  We were also reporting the monitoring data that we were seeing out in the field.  We were issuing health statements.  We issued thirteen health statements during the fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When did those start?


MR. SHIPP:  About two or three days, I believe, after the fire started.  And we were on . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  January 13th, 14th; something like that?


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.  And we were on the scene with inspectors the day of the fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The day of the fire.


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And thirteen notices?


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how did you get those notices out?


MR. SHIPP:  Those notices were issued with the same type of distribution list that we use for our health advisory statements—the normal list that we put out.  And they also went to EPA and Office of Emergency Services during that period.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  If I live in West Fresno, how do I get your notice?


MR. SHIPP:  It also goes out through the media.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do I get something at my house?


MR. SHIPP:  No.  It’s on the web, but it’s not delivered to the house.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think a lot of residents in West Fresno have access to computers?


MR. SHIPP:  I wouldn’t know that.  But that is our normal distribution.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is it bilingual or single language?


MR. SHIPP:  I believe that they had bilingual, and they also translated it into Hmong, I believe.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so you had Hmong, Spanish, and English?


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All thirteen notices?


MR. SHIPP:  I could get you that information, but I’m not certain.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Could you get back to us on that?


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of your data on how air quality was affected, what’s your conclusion?


MR. SHIPP:  On certain days we would see spikes in the data that were very unusual in some of the monitoring sites, both the special monitoring sites and the routine monitoring sites surrounding the fire.  So, we would see, say, an hour spike.  At one point we saw a four-hour spike, and we believe, at least preliminarily, that those were from the Crippen fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, in terms of equivalence, can you give us an equivalent of what this fire caused in the way of pollutants in the air given these spikes?


MR. SHIPP:  The highest concentration that we measured was about 80 micrograms per cubic meter fine particulate, and that equates to 159 on the Air Quality Index scale, which is considered to be unhealthy.  But, I want to preface this by saying we have some days where we hit 205 on the Air Quality Index scale without the fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Without the fire?


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many days were those?  You say “some days” we do, but how many days?


MR. SHIPP:  Usually once a year for this type of pollutant particulate matter.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of that particulate matter, is there still PM in the air?


MR. SHIPP:  Today?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. SHIPP:  Yes.  Anytime . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Due to the fire?


MR. SHIPP:  Probably not because of the fire.  Today we still have particulate levels.  When we have meteorology that’s conducive to high pollution levels, we see levels that climb well over a hundred on the Air Quality Index scale.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How long you been here?


MR. SHIPP:  I have been here five years, and I have about twenty-five years’ experience in air pollution meteorology.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And beyond five years, where were you before that?


MR. SHIPP:  Santa Barbara-Ventura area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Your experience in terms of relation to other fires that have occurred in the valley, it’s a big fire, not a big fire?


MR. SHIPP:  I don’t think I’ve ever seen anything this extensive.  We had a tire fire in the past, but the plume would rise a lot higher than this one, and we didn’t see the types of impacts that we saw from this one close in.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why?  Why is that?


MR. SHIPP:  That fire was a lot hotter, so we, in general, didn’t see this impact that was very close in proximity to the event.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many fires have there been in the valley due to waste refuse sites?


MR. SHIPP:  I don’t think I have an answer for that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve been here five years.  Any idea?


MR. SHIPP:  No, not a waste fire.  I know of the two tire fires.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Two tire fires.  And in terms of going back to the notification of residents, the thirteen notices, those aren’t really to residents then, are they?  They’re just to the general media, and the media kind of gets the word out.  Is that how it works?


MR. SHIPP:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How does it work?  I’m living in West Fresno, again.  I’m just doing my job, and I drop my kids off at school, and I come home every day, and there’s a fire that breaks out.  And I can read the Fresno Bee, but how do I know whether to take my kids outside or not?  And the school isn’t in session; it’s Saturday.


MR. SHIPP:  I don’t think I’ve got an answer for that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve got to have an answer.  You’re the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, so tell me the answer.


MR. SHIPP:  Again, the general way that we have put out these notices is try to act as a web where we notify. . . . and schools do get these also.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s Saturday.  I’m just a resident.  I want to know, what do we do?  You’re the air board.  I’m mean, you’re the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.  Your job’s to get out notices.  You said there were thirteen.  They’re bilingual:  Spanish, Hmong, and English.  How do I know?


MR. SHIPP:  I don’t have the answer to that, but I’ll certainly take that back and try to work on it with our district.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Please.  If you could get back to us, that would be great.  


Thank you very much.


Okay, let’s move on.  In terms of the origin of the fire, we have Harlan Kelly, the District 3 Citizens’ Advisory Committee.  Mr. Kelly, thank you for joining us.


You have a video?


MR. HARLAN KELLY:  Yes.  Senator, I have . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Harlan, first of all, how long have you lived in southwest Fresno?


MR. KELLY:  Approximately thirty-two years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s it?


MR. KELLY:  Mm-hmm.  Love it too.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can we play your video for a minute, or do you want to make a statement first?


MR. KELLY:  I have one video that I would like for you to see, but also, your staff asked for me to turn over the material that we had turned over to the grand jury.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Sergeants, can you please grab that material for the committee?  Thank you.  They’ll grab it right now.  


Can we run this video?  We’re going to watch this for a couple of minutes, okay?  Go ahead.

[Video Presentation]


MR. KELLY:  I’ve just got through shooting part of it from another angle.  This is, at least, about twenty feet high.  Looks like it’s getting larger and larger since the last time I videoed it.  There’s a lot of stuff there.


This is the type of stuff that we have to deal with, and this is in a two-mile radius, going straight down Whitesbridge and approximately a quarter mile off of Marks and Whitesbridge.  And this is only a small portion of what we have over here.  We have the sewage plant that accommodates Fresno and Clovis.  We have three dumps.  And by the way, they want to build us a big ol’ park for our kids over here, but they always want to build it on a dump.  And we have more _________ and recharge basins in a two-mile area than any other part of the city.  And not including wrecking yards.  You’ve seen some of the wrecking yards going on Whitesbridge.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Mr. Kelly, come on back up.


What is it that we were just watching?  Please explain it to the committee.


MR. KELLY:  Beg your pardon?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What is it that we were just watching?  Can you explain that to the committee that video?  What was that?  Our transcript can’t capture what it is we were seeing, so I want to put it on the record.


MR. KELLY:  This was a video that was taken in 2001, and it was presented to the city council.  Our subcommittee did put what we call a negative scenery of different sites on the west side, and that’s only a portion of the video.  The video would show seven wrecking yards and would show three recycling companies—and Archie Crippen was one of them.  It also left out(?) the side view of Archie Crippen, where he had _________ tires and he had poles and everything there, you know.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Kelly, let’s go through this piece by piece if you can bear with me for a minute, okay?


MR. KELLY:  Okay.  You’ll have to speak a little louder because one of my ears is plugged up.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You said you approached the city.  You approached the city?  Is that correct?


MR. KELLY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When did you first approach the city in regards to that video and in regards to dump and refuse piles in southwest Fresno?


MR. KELLY:  Senator, to tell you the truth, we showed our first film in August of 1999.  And then in 2001, that’s the film that you’ve just seen.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s the February 25th, 2001 film.


MR. KELLY:  Right.  And that’s the one that was presented to the council to have Code Enforcement to go out and either cite these people for violations or to see if they had permits to operate.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was that your request when you showed this video at the city council?


MR. KELLY:  Yes.  That was our request.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who did you talk to at the city in regards to these dumps and refuse sites?  Who specifically?


MR. KELLY:  Who did I talk to?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who did you talk to?


MR. KELLY:  I talked to the councilman up here.  I talked to, I think it was, Code Enforcement.  We talked to . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have names?  


MR. KELLY:  Names?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  You said “council.”  Did you talk to every single council member?  Was there a particular council member?


MR. KELLY:  Yes.  You want me to give you names of the council?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, I do.


MR. KELLY:  Well, with the help of our councilman, Dan Ronquillo—he was one of them.  Tom Boyajian.  I hope I pronounced his name right.  He was there.  I’m not sure of the other ones.  We have a couple, three new ones on there, and they wasn’t on there at the time.  I’d have to refer back to my . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you asked them specifically to do what?


MR. KELLY:  Well, we asked them if they would try and close some of these places down because it was an eyesore.  We had wrecking yards that’d been there for fifteen, twenty years.  They didn’t even have permits to operate there, and they would dump gasoline and all that stuff in the ground, and we was afraid that it would contaminate our water supply; and so, we were asking the council for help.  They, in turn, sent Code Enforcement out there.  They closed down three wrecking yards, but nothing was done about the recycling.  And we knew for a fact that one of the recycling companies was using ammonia on the weekends to enrich the soil that they was turning.  I was hoping that they would show the part of the video where you took steam coming from some of those mounds of saw(?), you know.  Maybe you’ll get a chance to see the whole thing later.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, in terms of the city’s response, then, when you approached them with this problem, how would you rank that?  Ten being real good, one being not so good.


MR. KELLY:  Well, we got a pretty good response from the council, but Code Enforcement, I think, was lacking because maybe they didn’t have the expertise when it comes to recycling, or maybe that wasn’t part of their forte.  I don’t know.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you talk to people from Code Enforcement?


MR. KELLY:  Yes, we talked to people.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Specifically to them?


MR. KELLY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who?


MR. KELLY:  I think I talked to Mr. Alvarez for one.  I think it was over the west side.  And I talked to the gentleman at that time who was in charge—I can’t think of his name—in Code Enforcement.  They said just give them an address, and they would go out and inspect it.  


But the problem we had, Senator, was that a lot of this stuff was being done on the weekend, and on the weekend, the Health Department was closed and Code Enforcement was closed.  So, there was no hotline we could call for them to come out.  So, we had to call the police on two different occasions to come out—a couple of residents did—to come out and just smell the fumes that was coming from the dumps.  And not only the dumps; I mean the recycling company.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what was their response?


MR. KELLY:  Well, he said there wasn’t very much he could do.  He could write it up in his report, he said, but it’s a civil matter.  And so, we tried to resolve this thing not only through the council but through different departments, and it just seemed like we got the runaround.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is the Dan Green waste site located near?


MR. KELLY:  Dan Green is located on the corner of Whitesbridge and Hughes—733 Hughes Avenue.  


There is a story behind that.  In 1981 they had a fire there, and the neighbors said it looked like the Fourth of July because they had something like 3,000 drums or containers stored there.  It used to be Fresno Industrial.  And so, the California EPA came in and did a cleanup on it, and they thought it was going to cost $200,000, but it turned out it cost them 1.4.  Our concern was that where Dan Green is at the present time, they did what they call a “commercial cleanup,” and across the street, opposite Dan Green, they did what they call a “residential cleanup.”  Now, the commercial cleanup is where they took six inches of soil off, and what they did was, before they took it, they mixed a chemical in there because it was highly contagious with lead.  So, they put a chemical in there that was supposed to neutralize the lead, and then they hauled it off to a dumpsite.  But we found out that some of it was hauled off to Kettleman City and some was hauled off to the dump over there on Jensen and West, where they have the new soccer field now.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you had trouble with that site.  You went to see the city on that as well?


MR. KELLY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what was the response by the city?


MR. KELLY:  Oh, at that time?  No, this is something we found out later.  I mean, about the dump thing.  There’s still contamination there because I called the California EPA, and I talked to Mr. Weis—W-E-I-S—and I talked to Mr. Shane up there, and I asked them if they would give our committee a letter saying that that property was clear of contamination, and he said no; no agency could do that because there still may be hotspots there.  And I asked him, I said, “Well, would you recommend putting a recycling company on that property?”  I know this is hearsay, but he told me off the record, he said, “No.”  He said, “I would recommend putting like a warehouse there or a trucking company.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, was the Yahweh site. . . . how do we pronounce that—the Yahweh site?  Give us a little bit on that.  There was a fire there as well.


MR. KELLY:  Yahweh was presently located on Marks and Olive, and the city made it move.  And so, he found four acres over there on Whitesbridge right next to a wrecking yard, and he moved there illegal without any permit or anything, from what I understood.  The city told him that he had to close down.  And I guess his thinking was that since Dan Green moved there and the city council told him that he couldn’t move there but he moved there because. . . . ________________________ weren’t allowed that type of business, he felt like, well, he should stay there; so, he hired a lawyer.  I think the only thing they got him out of there is it caught on fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so that caught on fire.


MR. KELLY:  Yes.  That was the first one that caught on fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That was two months before the Crippen fire, right?


MR. KELLY:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And did you talk to the city council about that or anyone in the city given that that caught on fire two weeks or something—before the city?


MR. KELLY:  We went before the city council on him also.  We asked if they would close him down.  


And let me say this, Senator; I don’t want to take up too much of your time.  We know for a fact that when they tried to put an adult video store across town in a predominate white area—and I don’t want to seem like I’m racist or anything—but the people in that area came out and they told the councilman, “No, we don’t want them here.”  The council bagged them up and they told the vendor or whoever—the company—“We’re not going to let you open.  Take us to court.”  Okay?  The same thing happened with the housing project over on the other side of town in a predominate white neighborhood.  The developer ended up taking, I think, the city to court.  But it’s different when you come west.  When you come west:  “Okay, open up; we’ll take you to court,” you know.  And so, they be there for two, three, four years, and he’s still there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me make you mayor for the day, okay?  So, how would you change things?  Given three fires, three different incidences, three different councils, three different timeframes—I understand that, but I guess you’ve been around thirty-two-plus years in this area—what do you do?  Tell us.  I mean, you’re a citizen.  You’re mayor and council for the day.  So, what do you do?  I mean, tell us what you would do.  Give us your perspective.


MR. KELLY:  My perspective?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. KELLY:  Well, can I just say this?  The mayor appointed me to a task force, and I believe in this mayor even though I’m a Democrat.  [Laughter.]  The first thing I asked him . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You know you’re on record, right?  [Laughter.]


MR. KELLY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  I just wanted to make sure you know that.  He might use that on a campaign thing or something.  No, I’m just kidding you.  Go ahead.  I’m sorry.


MR. KELLY:  The first thing I asked him is that by being on the task force, am I to keep quiet in case somebody like you or an attorney or someone asked me for information.  He told me, “By all means cooperate.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  That’s good to hear.


Harlan, I’m going to give you the hard question before you walk off.  It’s hard to be the mayor or the city council.  You’ve been dealing with this for thirty-two years.  You’ve been in three fires, and literally, you get to do what you want for a day.  What do you do?  Tell this committee what we can do to prevent this in the future—your perspective.


MR. KELLY:  You say what I would do to prevent this?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What you would do.  Yes, what you would do.


MR. KELLY:  Okay.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And it could be off the wall.  You just tell us what you would do.  I would like your perspective on that.  Three different fires, three different councils, three different responses.  What would you do?


MR. KELLY:  If I understand you right, what I would do, we have a lot of old companies that’s grandfathered into the city, and their understanding is, I guess, just like the law where Brown versus Board of Education.  You know, you can’t impose any new testing on an employee when at the time he was hired he didn’t have to take it.  They figure the same way.  At the time I opened my business, these laws, rules, and regulations that govern the new plants, you know, doesn’t cover me because at the time I opened my business, it wasn’t required.  But I think that what I would do if we annex any old business into the city, we should make them comply with all the new rules and regulations.  Of course, we have to give them time.  But I think that if Archie Crippen had to comply with Title 14 of the integrated waste initiative. . . . and the reason it was put out—I don’t think it’s law yet—but in there it says that if you held any type of green waste, it must be turned every seven days.  And we got a lot of recycling companies not doing that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, end the grandfathering.


MR. KELLY:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That might be the suggestion of the night.  Thank you very much, Mr. Kelly, for joining the committee.


MR. KELLY:  Could I read this letter?  Mrs. Abbott wanted me to read this letter to you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How long is it?


MR. KELLY:  It’s just two little pages here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.  Go ahead.


MR. KELLY:  About a couple of minutes.  She has in here “Problems due to Archie Crippen fire.”  Her name is Stacey Abbott.  She says, “Ever since the fire started, I’ve been having problems such as difficulty breathing, shortness of breath, nosebleeds, throat irritation, and some vomiting.  I’m seven months pregnant, due on April the 12th, 2003.  I am very worried.  I’ve been to see the doctor more than once, and she doesn’t know exactly what’s burning in the fire to know if it’s harmful to the unborn baby.  I also need to mention, she prescribed me Benadryl and an inhaler for the fire problem I’ve been having for a few weeks now.”  And she goes on to say that she called twice the Fresno County Health Department (445-3330).  “The response was there is nothing they can do and to call Environmental Health; which they say the same thing—to call—and then they said to call San Joaquin . . . [recording tape turned].  They told me to go stay somewhere else.  It could be harmful to the baby.  I e-mailed the fire department and got no response.  I called a nurse, and she told me something needed to be done because this could be very dangerous for me and the baby, and that number was 1-800-224-0336 is the number I called.  I seen my doctor two or three times about the problem,” and she has a phone number on here and an address.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Mr. Kelly, thank you.  Just one question before you leave.  Did you get any notification from the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District on what to do when this fire broke out?


MR. KELLY:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.  Thanks for joining the committee.


Mr. Archie Crippen, owner and operator of the waste site.  Come on up, Mr. Crippen.  And I want to say thank you today, personally, for the tour of the site. 


We’d like to hear your perspective.  How many years have you operated Crippen at this site?  How many years have you operated this site?


MR. ARCHIE CRIPPEN:  At that site?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. CRIPPEN:  Going on twenty-three years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Twenty-three years.  And when did the city first issue you a conditional use permit?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Nineteen eighty.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In 1980.  And when was the last time you were inspected, and who conducted that inspection?


MR. CRIPPEN:  The last time anybody had been around was the county.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when was that?


MR. CRIPPEN:  About three months ago.  We got in my pickup, and we rode around the site, and he looked it over and said everything looked good.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  From the city, when’s the last time you saw somebody out at your site?


MR. CRIPPEN:  From the city?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. CRIPPEN:  I really don’t remember anybody from the city coming around.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  A year, two, three?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Well, about five years ago they come in and said I didn’t have a permit, but we did have a permit, and they looked that over and said everything’s fine.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, the last time you saw someone from the city was five years ago?


MR. CRIPPEN:  I believe so.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did anyone in the city tell you to not take certain materials to your site?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you explain to us very briefly how your business operates?  For the record, how does your business operate?


MR. CRIPPEN:  We bring in concrete, blacktop.  We crush it.  We make base rock out of it.  We bring in wood from demolition jobs.  We pile it up.  We run it through a screen.  We run it through a cross and picking belt.  We pick the metal out of it and anything else, and then we run it through a hog and make chips for cogeneration.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And all of that meets your conditional use permit?  What you’ve had out there met your conditional use permit?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It did.  Did the city ever talk to you about having too much waste piled up?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did the city ever tell you too high, football field high, you’ve got to do something about this?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No.  They’re right across the fence from me, the city is, with their piles of debris.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They’ve got their own piles.  Is that what you’re saying?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes, they have their own piles, and they’re taller than mine.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And taller than yours.  Okay.


Mr. Crippen, on Saturday, January 11th, when the fire reportedly started, at what time did you call the fire department?


MR. CRIPPEN:  I never called the fire department.  Somebody else called them at quarter ‘til three.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what time did they respond?


MR. CRIPPEN:  They woke me up with a phone call at four o’clock, and they wanted in.  I got my clothes on, and by that time they was in.  They cut the lock, which was very fine; no problem.  We got the excavator out.  We got our water truck out.  They did a real good job.  The fire was at the bottom running up over the sides, and we did a good job.  We worked there from four o’clock in the morning, or a little after four, ‘til  four in the afternoon.  Four in the afternoon they came to me and they said, “The fire is out, we’re going home.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when you said “they” came to you and said the fire was out, they’re going home, who are you referring to?


MR. CRIPPEN:  The fire captain.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The fire department.


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  So, they told you that and then...?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes, and they asked me if I would put two people out there to stay there all night to watch for any hotspots.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, is it your opinion, their assessment at the time that the fire was put out. . . . it’s your assessment that the fire department’s comments to you meant that the fire was out at that time?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes.  We couldn’t see anything.  And they said they was going to go home and wanted to know if we would watch for it.  About an hour later, we found two little spots about so big around.  One we got our water truck out with a fire hose and we put the one out.  The other one we could not reach.  So, I got on the excavator, and we had a problem with that.  Then we started calling the fire department a little bit before six o’clock.  The last thing they said when they left was, “Don’t hesitate.  If you see one spark, you call us.  We’ll be right back.  Don’t hesitate.”  That’s what they kept saying:  “We’ll be right back.”


Six o’clock, we started calling them.  They accepted no cell phone calls, the lady said.  We called them a little bit later—no cell phones.  Called them a little later, and the lady said, “We had eight battalions out there all day, the fire is out.”  My grandson told her, “Lady, that’s what we’re calling for.  The fire is not out.”  At eleven thirty—five-and-a-half hours later—they showed up.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Eleven thirty p.m.?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Eleven thirty at night.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question.  At least according to the Fresno Bee, in an article dated January 12th, it states that after the fire department left, the blaze started again and, as you mentioned, you began to fight the flames yourself.  But according to the Fresno Bee, at least, it says, “According to fire officials, they had not been told that it was restarted.”  Is that a true statement?  Had they been told it had restarted?  Because at least the article portrays the fire department saying they were never told it was restarted.  Is that correct?


MR. CRIPPEN:  We called them from six o’clock until eleven thirty.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many calls did you make from six o’clock to eleven thirty?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Matthew, my grandson, made four or five calls.  I believe from the Highway Patrol, they sent us a tape the other day, and I think there’s twenty-some calls on it from six o’clock ‘til ten thirty.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, these are the Highway Patrol calls from six o’clock.  So, you have seven forty-five:  called 911, Highway Patrol; seven fifty-three:  911 call, the Highway Patrol; seven fifty-four:  911 call, the Highway Patrol; eight-oh-two, eight ten, eight twenty, nine forty-eight, ten-oh-two, ten eleven, ten fifteen, and ten thirty.  Quite a bit of calls.


What were those responses at that point?  Were you pretty frantic at this point in terms of getting the fire department back?


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes, we were.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what was the fire department’s response to you during this time?  The six hours or so that you were trying to get them back to put out this fire.


MR. CRIPPEN:  They just didn’t come.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why not?


MR. CRIPPEN:  I don’t know.  You’ll have to ask them that question.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We will.


MR. CRIPPEN:  The fire department that came out did an excellent job.  There’s no problem with the firefighters.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got you.  I just want to understand. . . . part of our job here is to understand how we can get better . . .


MR. CRIPPEN:  The response was the bad part.  The fire would have never happened, it would have never took my business, if they would have responded like they said.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Hold on.  One more question, Mr. Crippen.  Given that you’ve just told us, this committee, that particular story in terms of the response time, has anyone from the city ever asked you about that story?  Has anyone from the city contacted you?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No one from the city has contacted you?  You’re the owner of a site . . .


MR. CRIPPEN:  About the response?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  About this particular issue, yes.


MR. CRIPPEN:  No.  I told the fellow there in the white shirt about it, but that was it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Anyone from city council?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  City manager’s office?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No.  Nobody has ever asked me anything about it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you said this in the Fresno Bee as well, correct, about the response time?  I think I have an article in my binder here.


MR. CRIPPEN:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  After that article, did anyone from the city call you and ask you about that response time?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Anyone call anyone on your staff about that response time?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Anybody call anyone in your business about that?


MR. CRIPPEN:  No, sir.  Nobody come around.  Nobody called.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Mr. Crippen, thank you very much for joining us.  Appreciate it.


Okay, we have Nick Yovino, City of Fresno, Planning and Development Department.


MR. DAN HOBBS:  Senator, I’m going to lead off for the city staff.  I’m here in response to your asking me to make a short presentation on the fire incident.  With these remarks, I think I’ll be able to touch on some issues that have come up here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Hold on.  Are you Nick?


MR. HOBBS:  I’m Dan Hobbs, city manager.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Where’s Nick Yovino?


MR. HOBBS:  Nick Yovino is here, and he will be speaking after the fire chief speaks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, but we have an agenda we’re trying to follow.  Could I follow my agenda please?  Thank you.  Can we have Nick Yovino please come up?


Mr. Yovino, thank you for joining the committee.


MR. NICK YOVINO:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you state your name and position for the record?


MR. YOVINO:  Nick Yovino, City of Fresno, Planning and Development Department director.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you for joining us.


Now, what is the city’s policy in regards to the dumpsite such as the Crippen site?


MR. YOVINO:  The city’s policy is that they are regulated by our entitlement process, specifically the conditional use permit process.  On this site, I know Mr. Crippen said the city issued the CUP in 1980.  We did not.  That was issued by Fresno County in 1980 for concrete and asphalt storage.  The city annexed. . . . did you want me to continue, sir?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, go ahead.  Yes, absolutely.


MR. YOVINO:  The city annexed the site in 1983, and then in 1994, when Mr. Crippen proposed to expand his operation, we actually formalized and adopted the county CUP.  It has been longstanding city policy that when we annex property, as we did in 1983 through discussions with Fresno County, because people are concerned when they come into the city from the county, the city has always agreed with the county that we would honor those entitlements, those use entitlements, approved by the county and retain them in the city.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  “Honor” means grandfather them in.


MR. YOVINO:  To accept them, their rules and conditions, or whatever went along with that particular conditional use permit, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Grandfather them in.


MR. YOVINO:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the standards of the conditional use permit—your opinion—did the Crippen site meet those conditional use standards, or was it out of compliance?


MR. YOVINO:  The CUP that was issued by the county was for concrete/asphalt, and when we processed the city CUP in 1994, we retained that conditional use permit in those conditions; but also, other uses were allowed by right, including wood waste storage and recycling.  However, other uses such as the storage and recycling of other materials nonwood or the use of the site as a refuse dump were not permitted by any CUP, the city or the county.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, the question:  Was it in compliance or out of compliance?


MR. YOVINO:  Well, from the pictures and what we see, it appears there’s a real question as to whether or not it was in compliance.  The only reason, Senator, I’m not providing an affirmative definite answer is because now that the fire’s out, we are looking at the material and the debris, and to be fair to your question, we would want to make sure we have examined it thoroughly to make that determination.  But I can tell you, it appears there are some materials that are not wood waste storage and are not asphalt and concrete.  That’s very clear.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so you mentioned some things that it’s not clear; things that you are looking at.  In fact, and I guess in the Fresno Bee, January 16th, you’re reported as saying that you would determine whether Crippen violated his working permit, and I guess my question is:  Why wouldn’t you know that before the fire?  If you had some idea, if you saw some pictures, then why wait until after the fire to investigate?


MR. YOVINO:  Certainly.  The city’s policy and its practice is that it does code enforcement on a complaint basis only.  We have no regular program to monitor these sites or make regular inspections.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why is that?


MR. YOVINO:  That has just been longstanding city policy because of resources and time commitment.  However—and this is very important for you to understand—that has recently changed, and it has not changed because of the fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When did it change?  Was it after January 11th?


MR. YOVINO:  No, it was on November the 19th, last year, it officially changed by the city council when the city council adopted a new general plan, and that general plan contains many policies in it.  One of the policies that is in that plan is that the city would implement a proactive code enforcement program to monitor those most sensitive uses and businesses that could have a more direct impact on public health, safety, and welfare.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what date was that?


MR. YOVINO:  November the 19th, and I can submit those adopted policies to you for your record.  We are now in the process, actually, of developing a program for a very limited but a real proactive code enforcement program.  We’ll be presenting that soon to our council.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so that was November . . .


MR. YOVINO:  Nineteenth 2002.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, that was a proactive policy that said we’re going to do things more proactively.


MR. YOVINO:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did anybody hear Mr. Kelly’s request to the city council given that had changed and, therefore, maybe that might be a good proactive thing to do given he came to the city council?


MR. YOVINO:  The city staff has always believed that we needed this policy.  It took many years to get the general plan adopted.  That’s the reason why it wasn’t adopted some Tuesday at the council.  It was part of a comprehensive package for the future of the whole city.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got you.  But was it in place when Mr. Kelly came and said you need to do something about this?


MR. YOVINO:  No, it was not.  An inspection was performed, and the Code Enforcement manager will address that for you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask a question.  In terms of the report from 1992, it says that city officials knew from 1992 the Crippen site violated Fresno Municipal Code due to excessive dust and rodents and items that were not allowed under his work permit.  The article reported that—there was an article in the Fresno Bee I’m referring to—that city officials said that the matter was, quote, “probably resolved because there is no indication Crippen was penalized.”  And it goes on to say, “City officials said that no other complaints were filed against Crippen.”  


I guess my question is:  Can you tell us for sure whether the matter was resolved or not and how it was resolved?


MR. YOVINO:  In 1992?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. YOVINO:  I cannot.  I was not involved in any of that kind of action at that time.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Then who was responsible for that matter at that time?


MR. YOVINO:  Well, we’d have to go back and see who was responsible for code compliance.  Probably start there.  And also, because of the rodent issue and other issues, the county health department may have also been advised.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But Mr. Crippen wasn’t cited.  Right?


MR. YOVINO:  As far as I know, he was not.  Again, I can’t say for sure.  This is what I understand—what I’ve heard.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Your department oversees both permitting and enforcement?


MR. YOVINO:  That’s a very good question.  Our department does now include code enforcement as of just about two weeks now.  It was done on an interim basis—it’s related, actually, to economic development—to allow a certain part of another department to focus more on that.  And then on an interim basis, my department is now dealing with Code Enforcement and the city’s housing program and other operations as well.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is that part of the proactive . . .


MR. YOVINO:  Yes, and that’s a good thing because it helps us implement that November 19th policy.  And as I said, we’re now close to putting a proposal together, albeit on a limited basis.  It will be very difficult and very expensive for us to monitor the several hundred entitlements that we issue and the many thousands of permits that we issue each year in our department.  But again, our goal is to determine those most sensitive uses that need to be looked at closer, that most directly relate to public health, safety, welfare, and put this program together.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just a couple more questions.  In terms of the staffing, then, in being proactive and going and checking these sites given the restructuring, is there staffing in this particular budget to have people proactively go out and not deal with it in the old way, and that was on a complaint basis?


MR. YOVINO:  Without adding staff, what we will have to do is take some staff away from the current program, which is complaint basis only.  Our intention is to form a small team actually comprised of representatives from a number of city departments, but mostly operated by Code Enforcement, to perform this function.  We are not budgeted to. . . . we don’t have additional people that we can use for this program.  We’ll have to use existing resources.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Yes or no:  You’re getting more new people or not?


MR. YOVINO:  We are not getting more new people.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, because that was a long way to say you’re not getting anymore people.  Right?


MR. YOVINO:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, how are we expected then and people have confidence that you’re going to be able to go out and do this?  I believe Henry Perea, when he was on the council, asked for some proactive monitoring, like four years ago.  We keep talking about proactive monitoring, and you give me a kind of roundabout way of saying we’ve restructured, but still, there’s not people checking.  So, how am I supposed to go out and tell my residents after this meeting that there’s going to be restructuring or not?  I know budget times are tough, but you still have a budget, right?  You make priorities with it, right?  The city council does, the city manager.  There’s still a budget.  There’s not no money.  And you have to make priorities and sometimes things have to change, things have to be cut, things have to be put proactively in certain places that are not working.  Is that correct?


MR. YOVINO:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’ll ask the city manager this, but I guess from your perspective and your opinion, do you need more people?


MR. YOVINO:  We may well, and I want to answer this so that we get the timing straight with respect to the budget process.  We do not have any funds in the present budget to add personnel to do this.  However . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you expect new people?


MR. YOVINO:  However, we are putting together a new budget for the next fiscal year, and that is something we are now studying.  I can’t commit or say that we will or won’t.  It may be possible that we could do this through a restructuring of the existing staff and maintain an acceptable level of efficiency, but that’s all being studied right now.  So, that’s why I’m giving you this longer answer, and I apologize for that, but there’s something that’s going on now with the current budget but also something that can go on in the near future with the proposed budget.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You want more people?


MR. YOVINO:  More people would be good, but I would say this:  Until we can make sure that we could maximize the use of our existing staff, including staff from other departments, I don’t want to say absolutely yes or no.  Our first responsibility would be to see if we could make this work with the resources that we have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I understand that.  I’ll just say that we’ll wait until the budget comes out.  But I guess what’s frustrating me is if you are telling me right now that we’ll see if we can utilize people’s time better because maybe we can get them to do this more often, you’re not making the case for the city.  I think what you’re saying is people should have been doing it on the amount of money they were being paid if you’re finding that resource.  So, I don’t think that’s a good argument.  If you need more people, if people are extended, I get that.  But if you’re saying that there might be an innovative way to get people to do two things at the same time that they could have been doing to hopefully prevent this thing on a noncomplaint basis, then I’m a little confused and I’m a little. . . . would you understand that?


MR. YOVINO:  Certainly.  I’m just stating for you the process that we’re going to go through, and it may well be that we come to the conclusion that we need more resources to do this.  But I’m just stating the process that we are going through currently.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much for joining us.


Ray Villa, are you with us?  Thank you for joining the committee.


Now, when did you first receive complaints about refuse in and around the Crippen site?


MR. RAY VILLA:  Complaints?  We didn’t get anything until after the fire started.  To my knowledge, as far as having complaints in the past, we have had complaints about the Crippen property in the past.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But you don’t know when you got the first complaints.


MR. VILLA:  To my knowledge, just from. . . . can I just back up a little bit, sir?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.


MR. VILLA:  My name is Ray Villa, and I am the Code Enforcement manager for the City of Fresno.  I have been here about approximately eight months—here with the city.  In talking to my staff and reviewing some of the things, they have been familiar with the property as early as back in 1992.  Okay?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the response then, I believe the city spokeswoman was quoted in saying in the Fresno Bee article on January 18th that the city investigated Mr. Kelly’s complaints in March of 2001 and found that Mr. Crippen’s operation had, quote, “no zoning or code violations at the time.”  Is that true?


MR. VILLA:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And, I guess my question would be:  How could anyone from your department go out and inspect a site and say this pile was permitted under conditional use permit?  I think you just heard earlier that they said that there were probably some uses that weren’t.  The right hand not talking to the left hand?  How does that work?


MR. VILLA:  In this particular situation, back when this originally was presented to us back in 2001—and this is according to the stuff that I got from my staff, the information that I got from my staff—we received thirteen different complaints from Mr. Harlan.  We investigated all thirteen.  Several of them, a large majority of them, we started cases on.  Some we already had ongoing cases with.  And we shut down several of the businesses.  Mr. Crippen’s property was one of them.  We went by the property, did a visual on the property, and according to my staff, based on the visual, he was within the guidelines of the CUP.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re saying he was within the guidelines.


MR. VILLA:  At the time that they looked at the property, that he was in compliance at the time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you heard Mr. Yovino say that they may have been not in compliance.


MR. VILLA:  Again, when the inspectors went out to the property, they went out to the property from a distance.  They didn’t focus with a hard camera or anything.  They viewed it from a distance.  And based on . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, how far is “distance?”


MR. VILLA:  From behind the gated area, or the property, from the street.  And from their observation, by going by the property—this is not getting on the property, not moving anything; just from observation, looking at the property—that it was consistent with the conditional use permit.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that the way you guys check conditional use permits—by looking over the fence and seeing if it looks like . . . 


MR. VILLA:  No, we could actually get inspection warrants, and we could ask permission from the property owners to get on the property.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Then why didn’t you?


MR. VILLA:  We had several other cases to investigate at this particular time.  The staff had quite a few of them to do, and they had quite a bit of information based on the information they received.  They proactively went after all the particular ones that they felt that they, for sure, had violations on.  The observation they had, based on Mr. Crippen’s location and the CUP that he had, it appeared to them that it was consistent, and they didn’t feel that it warranted looking any closer at that particular time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you part of the task force?


MR. VILLA:  No, I am not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How would the task force, who is preparing a March 25th report, know everything you just told me?


MR. VILLA:  They’re asking me to come in and speak before them.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They are.


MR. VILLA:  Yes, and provide information.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have an opinion then that you’ll give that task force in terms of maybe how to investigate more fully sites other than looking over the fence?


MR. VILLA:  Yes.  I feel that it is important that these kind of uses be investigated and to take a proactive approach to it, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you have an opinion, and you’ll probably have some sort of idea of what we could do better.  Is that right?


MR. VILLA:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you of the opinion that you need more people?


MR. VILLA:  Well, I will say that I have prepared a package to present to ask for more people.  Whether or not we can financially afford it, I can’t say that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many more people?


MR. VILLA:  I believe I asked for six.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what would six provide?


MR. VILLA:  It would provide an opportunity to look at this on a proactive basis to really go after and investigate some of these places.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, no looking over the fence.  Actually investigate.  Move around . . .


MR. VILLA:  On a regular basis.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  On a regular basis these sites.


MR. VILLA:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That would be a good recommendation.


Mr. Villa, let me ask you:  Is it true that many of the refuse sites operate without permits?


MR. VILLA:  There are quite a few in the city that have operated without permits in the past.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are there any now?


MR. VILLA:  To my knowledge. . . . I can’t answer that for sure.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re the Code Enforcement supervisor.


MR. VILLA:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you’re not sure if there are people operating without permits.  Is that what you’re telling the committee?


MR. VILLA:  And the reason I can say that, sir, is because we operate on a complaint basis.  If we get a complaint on a property, we will go out there and investigate, and at that particular time, we will find out.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If you get the six people, you don’t have to do complaint basis.  Is that what you’re saying?


MR. VILLA:  Well, I am saying that anytime we can be proactive is always a help.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If you get the six people, will that change that policy?


MR. VILLA:  Well, even restructuring will help.  So, you know, any reprioritizing, restructuring, getting additional people, all those things could help.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I understand the constraint you’re under.  I appreciate your frankness.  I understand the city council and the city manager and mayor create, obviously, the upcoming budget, but I’m just trying to get your perspective for this committee, and that is, if you had six additional people, would it mean that we could do more than look over the fence and make a visual assessment of these, or does it mean that we can actually do investigations by moving debris?  That’s a very important question for this committee.  I think it’s a very important question for the task force, and I think it’s a very important question how to prevent these in the future.  And I think you’ve been extremely honest, and I very much appreciate it.


MR. VILLA:  Well, we can do that without getting the additional . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re going to lose your six right now.  You’d better stop while you’re ahead.


MR. VILLA:  We can do it in a bunch of different ways.  All I’m saying is that I will take whatever options that are available to me to make sure that we can do proactively that way.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much, Mr. Villa.


Mr. Hobbs.  Thank you for joining us.  Dan Hobbs, Fresno city manager.


MR. HOBBS:  Thank you, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re welcome.  Let me pick up right where I left off with Mr. Villa, if I could.


MR. HOBBS:  Senator, your staff had asked me to make a five-minute presentation overviewing the incident, and I would like to do that.  I can be very brief.  I think it would be helpful to your hearing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.  Thank you.


MR. HOBBS:  May I do that?  Okay, thank you.


In fact, I’ve prepared two documents for your review to facilitate a quick and easy review of the fire incident out at the Crippen site.  The first item is a chronology of events, and if you go through that, I think that creates a time frame within which to answer some questions as well.  The second set of materials is the status report that was presented to the Fresno City Council on January 28th.  And that report contains key questions and answers regarding the Crippen fire.  It contains copies of the fire health advisory notices that were made available to the public and, also, various press releases that were issued during the fire incident.  I won’t walk through the chronology in the interest of time.  


One thing I would note, though, on the larger document that was handed out to the city council—on circle 21—that lists the options that were identifiable to us on January 15th.  January 15th was when I was personally out at the site eight thirty in the morning, and I was out there with the interim fire chief, and the folks from the EPA and Integrated Waste Management Board were out there.  At that point, we were looking at four options to handle this fire.  The first was to let the fire burn itself out, and that was certainly not acceptable because that would take as much as two months.  The second was to mist the fire with a water fog to cut the particulate matter that was going into the air; and again, that wouldn’t get the job done.  The third was to smother the debris with dirt to contain airborne issues, and all that would do, in everyone’s judgment, is create a cap, and we’d have a fire burning there for years which would flare up.  In fact, we have a school of thought, sir, that says there may have been a fire burning there before the January 11th date.  The fourth option was to pull the pile apart and extinguish the pile, using, again, the airborne misting technique to limit airborne particulates.


I’d like to make a couple of other points using photos from the Crippen fire site because there have been a lot of questions raised about the fire—how it was handled—and, frankly, some second-guessing.


This poster here—or picture—shows what I saw eight thirty Wednesday morning, January 15th.  And I’m probably, oh, a good eighty to a hundred feet from this, and I’m looking at this, and I’m seeing this huge pile of dirt with some debris in it, and I’m seeing plumes of smoke in different areas, and I’m seeing little spots of fire anywhere from three inches high to a couple of feet.  About eight or ten of those.  And I’m looking at this and I’m saying, “How in the world is a pile of dirt on fire, especially when there’s grass growing out of it?”  Well, one answer to that is it wasn’t just a pile of dirt.  There was something under there that had caught on fire, and dirt was on top of that.


Secondly, if you look at this aerial from January 22nd. . . . so, this is about a week later.  This is after we’ve had the help from the EPA, from the state.  We’ve had the commitments.  


And by the way, I need to express my appreciation, my profound appreciation, to the state and to the EPA and to you, Senator Florez, for at the one public officials’ briefing you committed to making sure that the state stood behind its financial commitment to back us up in this enterprise, and I do appreciate that because on January 16th—the day after I visited the site—there was a real question about whether or not the state and the feds were going to come to our assistance.  In fact, I was told at seven thirty that morning we were not going to get the help.  And I’ve got to tell you, having that help is what enabled us to get this terrible incident taken care of.


But again, back to the point, this is a week later from the 15th.  This is on the 22nd.  And what you see is this very large area that’s been handled—can you hold that?—this has all been handled, looks like it’s well contained.  All you’ve got are these two plumes of white smoke coming up that are being contained with the fire hoses from the ladder trucks.  What happened beyond that is this problem continued, and I’ll tell you why it continued.  It continued until February 11th when it was finally and permanently extinguished.  


Unbeknownst to us, this was the worst part here, down in this eastern portion and the western portion.  These were the deepest and densest portions.  And underneath these we had raging fires.  So, when this was pulled apart, it released smoke.  We were using foam to contain the fire as well.  And at that period of time, we were also undergoing a number of days that were very foggy.  So, no matter. . . . even though the release wasn’t great, the release was staying in the area, and that’s what contributed to our problem.


Just one other comment, I guess, at this point regarding enforcement of this incident.  At this time, we have begun the legal steps to revoke Mr. Crippen’s conditional use permit, and we will also be actively looking at measures for cost recovery to the city from Mr. Crippen because of the incident.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s all after the fact, right?


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir.  Be happy to answer questions that you might have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  There was a Fresno Bee article January 18th where the city spokeswoman, Patty Miller, is reported as saying that the city has no funding or staffing to monitor conditional use permits such as the one for the Crippen site.  Investigations are based on formal complaints.  Is that the policy?


MR. HOBBS:  That is correct.  Yes, sir, it’s correct.  It’s complaint only.  That has been the policy.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, that’s a correct statement.


MR. HOBBS:  It has been complaint.  It’s been the policy . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Kelly told us earlier he came to, in essence, issue the complaint with the city.  Is that not a formal complaint?


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, he did.  He did, sir, in. . . . I think it was March of 2001, and as was reported to you earlier—and it’s contained in the materials which I shared with you—there was a formal follow-up and report given to the city council May 16th in response to his specific complaints.  It’s a very comprehensive report.  And as you heard, the finding was that the Crippen site was not in violation at that time.  That was about twenty months from that date to the date of the fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you heard Mr. Villa say to us that part of that observation was, in essence, peeking over the fence and saying it looks okay.


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir.  I saw the pictures that were taken.  They were taken from the property line behind the fence.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you heard me ask Mr. Villa whether or not that was maybe a proper way to investigate.  Any thoughts on that?


MR. HOBBS:  I will share with you—I think it might be in order—share with you comments that I have made to the city council on my posture regarding code enforcement.  I served in a number of communities, and I happen to believe in a proactive code enforcement approach.  Of the communities I’ve served in, the ones that are higher quality are the ones that have strong code enforcement.  I think it’s good economics, and I think it’s good for the health of the community.  And I think the mayor’s task force is going to be very aggressively looking at that whole situation, and I would expect recommendations to be coming out of that task force, frankly, that would move us in the direction of more proactivity.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  More proactivity?


MR. HOBBS:  More proactive enforcement.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who puts the budget together for the city of Fresno?


MR. HOBBS:  The city manager puts it together for the mayor at the direction of the mayor.  It is the mayor’s budget that’s presented to the city council.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand.  But is part of the proactivity adding more bodies in terms of inspection?  Mr. Villa testified; other people have testified.  You’re the city manager, and I’m just wondering, any thoughts on providing more dollars . . .  


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir, I do have thoughts on that.  That is an answer.  I don’t think it’s the only answer.  We don’t have the money to add more inspectors.  Three-quarters of our Code Enforcement staff right now are supported or funded by the community development block grant, and there are real questions about:  Is that appropriate for us to be doing business that way?  I think through stronger regulation of these type of facilities, that might be an option.  But again, that’s a public policy issue that needs discussion by the elected officials.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you present a budget, and the city council has the opportunity to rearrange the budget?  Is that the way it works?


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the separate city departments permitting, inspections—that’s all one now into the reorganization?


MR. HOBBS:  Well, that’s an interim reporting relationship.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, it’s interim.


MR. HOBBS:  We’re trying that out.  We’ll probably recommend a formal restructuring through the budget which is being put together the next sixty days, and that was something that was also hinted at in the Macias group report where they said because we have a number of inspectors up in Planning and Development and we have a number of inspectors over in this other department that has Code Enforcement, perhaps we should look at putting them together.  So, this may be an opportunity whereby putting the two together, the whole, hopefully, may be greater than the sum of the parts.  We might get some extra synergy out of that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  There’s a Fresno Bee articled dated January 19th, and you’re reported as saying that, quote, “Administrators have been looking since October at how conditional use permits are processed.”


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you have a report in about thirty days.  Is that correct?


MR. HOBBS:  The report was being worked on by a staff task force and is due in March.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Due in March?


MR. HOBBS:  In March, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, I guess I’m confused then.  You say administrators have been looking into this since October, and I guess my question is:  Who are these administrators that you were referring to in this article?


MR. HOBBS:  They’re internal staff—city staff.  What was the date of that article again, sir?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It was January 19th.  I’m going by your timeline.


MR. HOBBS:  The thirty days, yes.  That was a good-faith statement made at that time.  When I checked later, the actual date was around March 1.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, the administrators, them taking four months to complete this task, that’s null and void now, right?  The statement you made—we’ll have this done in thirty days—now we’re going to let the task force do that.  Is that what you’re saying?


MR. HOBBS:  No.  I expect a product from that task force, the staff task force, to go to the mayor’s task force.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, that thirty days was over yesterday then.


MR. HOBBS:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, where’s your report?


MR. HOBBS:  Well, as I indicated to you, when I made that thirty-day reference, I was speaking in general.  When I checked back with staff, the actual date is early March.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the early March report will be given to the task force.


MR. HOBBS:  March 1.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  March 1?


MR. HOBBS:  Yes.  Nick, how many meetings has the group had?  Five, six?  Were meeting last fall?  Again, this preceded the fire.  This was in response to . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does that give the task force enough time to even incorporate anything?  Their report’s due March 25th.  The city’s paying someone to write the report.  I imagine they need a couple of weeks to kind of put it all together.  So, if you’re submitting it March 1st to a task force whose report is due March 25th, how does that work?


MR. HOBBS:  Keep this in mind:  The task force is not meeting in isolation.  They’re bringing folks in to talk to them, and the folks they’re bringing in are the staff who are involved in putting together this report.  So, the mayor’s task force will have the benefit of the same information, I think, in a very timely fashion.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, this is a sequential. . . . not sequential . . .


MR. HOBBS:  I’d say parallel tracks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Parallel tracks.


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, as this goes, the task force has . . . 


MR. HOBBS:  They’ll have the benefit of that.  I see it that way, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, you had a press conference on the 18th, and I guess at that press conference—my first question was—was there any medical person at the press conference to inform the public of health risks due to the fire?


MR. HOBBS:  That was the one . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The reason I’m asking you this, I just asked the San Joaquin Valley air board whether or not. . . . they gave thirteen notices, and they handed out all this stuff, and it doesn’t seem like any resident got them.  And I asked him why not, and I didn’t get an answer.  So, I guess my question is given that they’re supposed to tell people how bad the air is, and I assume that they’re attempting to do that, and it’s not saying good or bad, but then you guys had a press conference on January 18th, and I guess my question is:  Was anyone from the medical field there to talk about the health risk due to the fire?


MR. HOBBS:  We did have a press conference out at the site on the 18th, and we noted at that press conference that right after the press conference we were going to distribute over that Saturday and that Sunday within a one-mile radius a letter from me, indicating what was going on and the measures we were taking to contain the fire.  In fact, that is in your packet, sir.  That’s circle number 14, and an except from that is, quote, “While affecting everyone in Fresno and the surrounding communities with smoke in the air, you and your family are the most directly impacted by this fire.”  And another excerpt is:  “The air quality near this site is a concern.”  So, again, that was within a one-mile radius.  It was delivered to all homes.  We also had folks from the Air Quality District, and Kevin Hall helped us with this.  They came in with a box of fliers, and those were . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, Kevin Hall helped you with it?  You worked with Kevin Hall?  I just want to be real clear on this.


MR. HOBBS:  Kevin just volunteered.  I’m not sure what his association is with the Air Quality District.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess your comment makes me to believe that the city and Kevin Hall are working together.  Is that the case?


MR. HOBBS:  No.  I’m just trying to indicate to you that. . . . Kevin has been a critic of different folks, including myself, from time to time, and I’m just trying to give credit where it’s due.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Join the club.


MR. HOBBS:  He, in fact, was big enough to apologize in public for a statement that he made.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I don’t want to go there.  I’m just asking, when you say . . .


MR. HOBBS:  The point I’m trying to make, Senator, because I know this is an issue of concern to you about notification, we got a letter out to residents within a one-mile area.  We also had the benefit of a flier that was in two languages—or three?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Three languages.


MR. HOBBS:  Was it three?  Okay, thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But I’m just saying that you got more out than the thirteen notices that were put out by the San Joaquin Valley board, at least to one mile of residents.  Is that correct?


MR. HOBBS:  I’m sorry?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got this out to real residents.  Real folks got this.


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, sir; delivered by our firefighters.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me just switch a little bit here.  During that time you said at that press conference—and I’ll quote you—that, quote, “there’s no danger off the site,” and I’m just kind of wondering what you meant by that comment.


MR. HOBBS:  Sure.  I was making a statement that almost paralleled, if not quoted, what the EPA person was saying at the site that day.  They had released their findings that said there were no carcinogens or toxic materials leaving the site in any kind of a quantity to pose a concern.  So, I was supporting that statement.  And in fact, at that press conference, if you were there and you caught the whole thing on film, one of the reporters says, well, you know, in effect, “Mr. Hobbs, are you saying there’s no problem due to smoke?” etc., etc.  I said, “Of course not.”  I said, “Smoke is always a problem.  We know the irritation that causes,” etc., etc.  


But I have to tell you, what was paramount in our minds at that time was do we have really nasty stuff leaving this site and posing a very emergency type consideration?  Frankly, it was said out of relief.  I mean, we were very glad to hear there were not carcinogens or toxic materials leaving the site.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But I guess my concern is no medical person at all at the press conference.  Did you confer with a medical person?  Was there anything in this letter that refers to anything about health effects of this particular site?  I mean, I just glanced there.  I didn’t see any.  I guess what I’m saying is that for residents whose best mode of information beyond one mile, or even in this letter for one mile, is:  Is it a health risk to me?  Is there something in this letter that says it’s a health risk to me?  


Did the city consult with medical folks to give the residents any indication whether there would be health risk?  You say you based your comment on an EPA particulate type of an argument, and I guess just what is it that the city did in terms of telling residents?  I live in West Fresno, again.  Is it safe for me to go out or not?  Anything there?


MR. HOBBS:  I think we had several objectives with the letter.  First was to let folks know about it, and I quoted a couple things for you that said there is smoke in the air, and your family’s impacted by this, and the air quality is a concern.  The other objective, Senator, that we had was to let folks know what we’re doing about it and to give them some assurance that this was a very high priority and a matter of great concern to us in City Hall.  That’s why we noted in the letter that more than a million gallons of water had been used to contain the fire since it was discovered, and it also noted that we were working very closely with the EPA and the state.  


So, it was a threefold purpose:  First, to alert the immediately surrounding community—number one.  Number two, to say we are concerned healthwise.  And number three, we’re working together with all the resources we can muster to handle this thing as quickly as possible.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Last question.  Just in terms of the city officials waiting four days to call state and federal authorities to start tearing the pile apart, putting the fire out, any thought on that?


MR. HOBBS:  Yes, I have.  That is why I used this visual.  Because if you look at the chronology, the fire broke out Saturday.  There was a response by the fire department.  They were back there on Sunday.  This thing was continuing Monday.  Our folks were there.  Our folks were there twenty-four hours.  On Tuesday, late Monday and Tuesday—and I believe the chief would support this chronology—the question was raised:  What do we have here?  How serious is this?  Is this beyond our means?  And at that point, calls were made to outside agencies.  And God bless them, they were here fast.  I was impressed to be on the site Wednesday to have those folks there and to receive their reassurances that they were going to do everything they could to help us with this.  Frankly, I’ve been in government a long time.  I haven’t seen other agencies respond like that.  It was a very good thing to see.


So, really, it’s late Monday, it’s Tuesday before there’s a realization:  We’ve got something bigger here than just a little trash fire to put out.  Then we’re up against:  How big is this thing, and where are we going to get the resources?  And from that point on, as you go through the chronology, it gets into ordering equipment and having the right equipment.  It has the oxygen-containing units in it and the skilled operators and getting them on site, and it’s things like getting the trenches dug to contain the water so we don’t have a water pollution problem.  So, we’re off and running in that regard.


That’s the answer, sir, to why it’s two to three days.  Again, when I’m out there on Wednesday, you don’t know what you’ve got.  You’ve got a mound of dirt.  You don’t have a raging inferno.  This is not the raging inferno that has been portrayed on the news.  What the news captured is when some of these areas were opened up and you did have the real red fire plume.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess the issue for me—and I’ll just end this—is when you look at that photo, you’re not supposed to know.  You’re the city manager.  You’re supposed to have staff people/experts who do know looking at this, giving you their best advice.  And you’re telling me that the best advice that you got was that there was nothing, really, that would contemplate you calling people the next day.  Is that correct?


MR. HOBBS:  I’m sorry.  I didn’t understand your question that way.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess we keep referring. . . . you’re looking at it, and to be honest with you, if I look at it, you look at it, Mayor Autry looks at it, and the city councilwoman looks at it, I think it’s different than an expert looking at it and saying, “That needs to happen now.”  And I guess that’s my question:  Did you have experts to look at it?  I don’t really care if you looked at it.  I want to know if you asked the experts.


MR. HOBBS:  Our in-house experts—the fire department—were looking at this and initially poured a million gallons of water on it and thought that would contain it.  That didn’t happen.  They looked at it and said, you know, “This is something we haven’t dealt with before.  We’ve got mutual aid with other parties.  We need to call in the state and the feds,” and that’s what they did.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s what I wanted to know.  


Mr. Hobbs, thank you very much.  Appreciate it. 


MR. HOBBS:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s go to the response, if we could, to the fire—the local agencies.  Tim Casagrande, Environmental Health Division, Emergency Services manager, County of Fresno.


Tim, I’m going to kind of go through this very quickly if I could to keep us on time.  Just in general, what type of response plan was in place before this fire?


MR. TIM CASAGRANDE:  Type of response plan?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes—plan.  You’re the EMS manager for Fresno County.


MR. CASAGRANDE:  The county has an emergency services plan that deals with a variety of different disasters and/or emergencies.  Everything from earthquakes, wildland fires, floods, and so forth.  This particular incident happened in the city, however.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.


And in terms of how the county then was involved, even though it was in the city, can you give us some indication of how you were involved in the suppression of this particular fire?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  We arrived on the site, and based on our observations and in consultation with the city, the fire chief as well as the local air district and Mr. Crippen, who was also on site, and due to the magnitude and the size and significance of the fire, it became apparent that further resources—state/federal resources—would be needed.  People with specific expertise—technical expertise.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the county inspecting the Crippen site, was that ever done, and when was the last time it was inspected?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  I’m sorry, I didn’t hear that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When was the county’s inspection of the Crippen site, the last time it was completed?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  As Mr. Crippen mentioned, my staff had been to the site to evaluate the site from the standpoint of ensuring that materials that were brought on site did not cause that particular facility to be regulated under state law.  He traveled the site with Mr. Crippen, and based on his observations, as Mr. Crippen mentioned, he indicated that there weren’t materials that were present that would cause that site to be regulated by state law or regulations.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the inspection program, the county has. . . . we’ve heard the city’s inspection program.  Is yours similar?  Check every three months, six months, a year?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  We’re the local enforcement agency with Solid Waste in the county.  We are an arm of the state when it comes to solid waste matters.  We are certified by the State of California to conduct those activities and authorized by them to enforce state law and regulations relative to solid waste.  This particular facility is an unregulated facility under state law.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s go to that for a moment.  In terms of enforcing this body of state codes, you work with rulings from the California Integrated Waste Board.  Is that correct?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  We work with staff and rules with that.  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you also make recommendations to that board proactively?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  That’s correct.  We have the opportunity to do that through the rule-making process.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you done that?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what has been the follow-up?  What’s the outcome?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  The outcome at this point in time is, as I understand it, another fifteen-day review comment period for the construction demolition regulations I think that you’re referring to.  Those particular regulations have been in the promulgation stages for many years—approximately since ’98.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Many years.  That’s right.


Just a last question, Tim, if I could.  In terms of your dealings with the California Integrated Waste Management Board, have you found them to be responsive?


MR. CASAGRANDE:  I’ve found their staff to be extremely responsive.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about the board in terms of the rulemaking?  You mentioned some of the issues in terms of moving the process forward.


MR. CASAGRANDE:  Well, certainly we would like in this particular case, and certainly in hindsight, we would have loved to have had these regulations promulgated sooner from the standpoint of being able to impart some activity regulatory-wise to ensure that facilities that handle this type of materials operate in conformance with regulations.


But getting back to your statement or your question regarding the staff, their staff have been very responsive.  When we made the call to the Integrated Waste Management Board for their technical expertise on this instance, their staff were here that next morning along with the USEPA.  And their technical expertise and the state’s resources have been invaluable in putting this fire out.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Tim, thank you very much.


Mr. Bart Bohn, Fresno County administrative officer.  Bart, I’ve got some questions to ask you, and let’s see if we can move through this.


Can you give the committee an overview of how the county administers permits to refuse and waste sites?


MR. BART BOHN:  Bart Bohn, the county administrative officer.  Tim Casagrande is really the environmental health expert that works those permits, and he can talk to you about those details in much more detail than I can.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well Bart, let me ask you a question then.  What was your role in extinguishing the fire at the Crippen site?  What role did the county play?


MR. BOHN:  The important function I think is important to look at the county’s role is upon notification from the city when it was clear that the fire was not under control, our staff joined the unified command as it was being formed, and we started participating in the meetings.  At that point, the county’s role, particularly in the emergency services area, is to maintain contact with all those state agencies, federal agencies that respond to environmental disasters, that respond to emergency situations.  So, as I understand it, Tim was primarily involved in making those calls that got to those agencies.  And you already heard Dan Hobbs talk about the quick response from the federal agencies and from the state agencies.  That was our role.  Our interest was both air quality and water quality, and based on that, those were the issues that we were looking at.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Bohn, does the city and county ever work together on code compliance issues?


MR. BOHN:  Well, we work together in terms of a handoff.  We know exactly what is within the city.  We know what exactly is . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you ever get together and talk about these mutual sites?


MR. BOHN:  I don’t think we’ve gotten together . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Working groups?


MR. BOHN:  No.  I don’t think we’ve gotten together because it’s a fairly clear handoff when the city annexes an area and takes responsibility.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I getcha.  But we all live in a region.  I’m just kind of  wondering, as much participation as you have solving and responding . . .


MR. BOHN:  I’m glad you brought that up because, in fact, we have, probably, the premiere program in California being initiated, and it was initiated through the partnership between Supervisor Bob Waterston and Mayor Alan Autry to create an air quality task force.  We’re very concerned about the air quality, and I’d like to express my appreciation for you bringing this issue up.


This is an air quality task force that was formed months before the fire.  At this point, it is involving some eight counties throughout the San Joaquin Valley.  It’s got every private and public sector involved, and we’re heading toward a massive air quality summit in April.  I’m sure you’ve been invited to that.  The name, Operation Clean Air, I think pretty much spells out our concern on all of these issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just one last question if I could.  Your opinion in terms of how fires like this can be prevented in the future.


MR. BOHN:  Well, we do provide oversight to a number of contractors that perform similar functions that are in the unincorporated areas of the county, and we inspect those sites.  Clearly, to segregate materials and keep them under control and move them quickly are measures that are all wise practices by these contractors.  We see a range of operations.  Try to correct those as soon as we see practices that aren’t very good.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any thoughts on Mr. Kelly’s grandfathering—mayor for the day—changes from the county’s perspective?


MR. BOHN:  I think it is totally appropriate.  As was told, the CUP in 1980 was issued by the county, not the city, and in a continual process of taking land into the city from the county—it only travels one way; it travels from unincorporated areas into the incorporated areas of our fifteen cities in the county—it would be incredibly disruptive to the residents, to the businesses of our county if there was a discontinuity and all of a sudden the rules changed the day you became annexed.  So, it appears in this case that that transfer was totally appropriate on the part of the city.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you support that.


MR. BOHN:  I would certainly support the grandfathering that occurred back in the early ’80s.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MR. BOHN:  Thank you very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Joe Aranaz, Interim Fresno Fire Chief.


Thank you for joining us.  Mr. Aranaz, if you can just tell the committee what happened on the night of January 11th when the fire at the Crippen site was first reported.


CHIEF JOE ARANAZ:  Certainly.  The Fresno City Fire Department was initially dispatched to a trash/rubbish fire at 3:16 a.m. on January 11th, 2003.  Upon arrival and after gaining access to the property, Engine Company 3 called for additional equipment to fight this fire.  Fire crews were on scene throughout the morning, along with the property owner, extinguishing the surface fire.  The property owner and Fresno Fire continued to work together throughout the afternoon in order to extinguish the subsurface fire.  At seventeen thirty-four hours, fourteen hours after dispatch and one million gallons of water later, the property was turned back over to Archie Crippen.  At twenty-two hundred hours, Engine Company 3 was again dispatched to the site as the surface fire had come back to life.  Additional equipment was again ordered as the fire was spread into the west side and the top of the pile.  Crews fought the fire throughout the night and all day Sunday, January 12th, 2003.


Due to water runoff and the ineffectiveness of the water streams, a decision was made to curtail the widespread use of water.  Crews fought large flare-ups and spot fires in order to suppress emissions.  The Fresno Fire Department remained at scene and carried on with this operation through the night and into Monday.


I was personally called to the scene Monday afternoon, and we made the decision to call for the advice of Fresno County Environmental Health, our local emergency agency.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What day were you personally involved in this?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Monday.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Monday?  And it started at 3:16 a.m. on what?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Saturday morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, Saturday.  Okay.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Subsequent to this meeting, the Industrial Waste Management Board was contacted.  The next day both Todd Thalhamer of the Integrated Waste Management and Michelle Rogow of the USEPA were at the site to offer their expertise.  City Manager Dan Hobbs, Councilmember Sterling, and the city PIO, Patty Miller, viewed the site firsthand to get a perspective of the size and magnitude of this fire.  


Now, I know there is this issue of a three-and-a-half-hour delay in dispatch for fire crews after the Fresno Fire Department left the scene late on Sunday afternoon.  This delay is being investigated.  The investigation is an Internal Affairs investigation being led by the Fresno Police Department.  That being said, I will not comment on it further.


What I will say is this:  Fire must follow the laws of physics.  These laws require heat, fuel, and oxygen to be present for fire to occur.  Remove any of the three and fire goes out.  Due to decomposition of the materials in the pile, heat built up to the point that all that was needed was oxygen for this fire to erupt.  Visible fire was evident early Saturday morning.  What was not evident was the depth or extensiveness of the heat throughout the pile.  Our fire fighting operation found deep-seated fire throughout the pile and at depths reaching down to native earth.  Fire cannot spread throughout such a large area in three-and-a-half hours.  It is physically impossible.  A three-and-a-half-hour delay is unfortunate, but it had no effect on the duration of this fire.


To finish, the Fresno City Fire Department would like to thank the Fresno County Department of Health, the San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District, the Integrated Waste Management Board, the USEPA, the California Office of Emergency Services, the California Department of Forestry, the US Coast Guard, the Williams Fire and Hazard Control Company, Gwynn(?) Construction, and Sukett(?) Construction for their efforts in battling this blaze.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me give you some questions if I could.  So, you’re saying you’re not going to tell us about the five-hour gap, or four-hour gap, whatever it was.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Three-and-a-half.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the reason for that is…?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  It’s an internal investigation being conducted by Fresno P.D.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when was that investigation requested?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  As soon as it came to light, Chief Dyer asked Lieutenant Korosko(?), who is the communications supervisor, to begin an internal investigation.  I can’t tell you exactly what day that was.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was it yesterday?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And this was requested by Chief Dyer?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when will the outcome of that investigation be available?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  I’ve no idea.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you plan on sharing information of that investigation?  Will it be done before March 25th, before the task force issues its final report?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Again, I don’t know when it will be completed.  We’d have to talk to Dyer or Lieutenant Korosko.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How long did it take you to arrive the first time?  You got called the first time—not the gap.  The very first time you got called, how long did it take?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  The dispatch record shows we were dispatched at three sixteen in the morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you worked all the way to seventeen hundred thirty-four hours.  Is that right?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Seventeen thirty-four hours, yes; correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then you came back at twenty-two hundred hours?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  That’s correct.  Twenty-two-oh-one, Engine 3 was dispatched again.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Obviously, it’s under investigation, but that gap disturbs you?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Well, of course.  Anytime that there’s a call placed for a fire and we’re not dispatched, we have a concern about that, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What is the policy of communication between the CHP and yourselves in terms of 911 calls?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  All 911 calls originate at CHP.  They should be turned over to the police-fire dispatch center to be dispatched.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is CHP part of this investigation?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Through the dispatch center?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Didn’t you say Chief Dyer is investigating the gap?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Yes, I did.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you know that there were calls—I think I called them out a minute ago—nine or ten calls to 911?  Is this part of the investigation?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  I’m sure it will be.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you don’t know if it’s formally part of the investigation, the calls to CHP?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  All the calls that come into the police-fire dispatch center are on tape, and I’m sure they will all be investigated.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Are you aware that one of the last calls. . . . and again, these calls to CHP were made at seven forty-five, seven fifty-three, seven fifty-four, seven fifty-six, eight-oh-two, eight ten, eight twenty, nine forty-eight, ten-oh-two, ten eleven, ten fifteen—all 911 calls—to get someone out to put this fire out.  Are you aware of that?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  And at twenty-two-oh-one we were dispatched out.  So, the calls that came in after twenty-two-oh-one were after the fact.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  My listening of some of these, at 10:30 p.m.—the last call to 911, the CHP—the quote was, “They’re letting it burn out for a few days.”  Why would the CHP say that they’re letting it burn out for a few days if they had not communicated with you folks?  Is that somebody else’s assessment?  Why would that be said?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  You’d have to talk to that individual who made that quote.  I don’t know.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that a normal policy for the CHP to make those types of judgment calls?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  I can’t speak for CHP.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s a state agency.  I’m going to ask CHP, believe me.  So, as much as we are asking the city some hard questions, we’ve got some questions at the state level as well, because all those 911 calls did not go to your station.  Is that correct?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  That I don’t know—if all of them were transmitted or not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess my overall question unrelated to this fire is:  Does CHP, in your experience, ever make those types of judgments like not responding fire watch or fire watch or they’re letting it burn out for a few days?  Has that been an experience that you have had in other fires with the CHP?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Not to my knowledge.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just a couple more questions.  In terms of the Fresno Bee, it stated that your crews were not trained in responding to refuse waste fires.  Is that correct?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  That is not correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are they trained?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Of course.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And who does that training?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Our training section.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you believe that you could have done anything different or a better job in terms of suppressing this fire?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  To my knowledge, no.  Again, I was not out there at three sixteen in the morning on Saturday, nor was I out there all day Saturday or Sunday.  When I got there on Monday and the fire had spread—and as I said, I believe fire was throughout this pile.  It had only vented in one small spot when we arrived that early Saturday morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When was the fire at its height?  When was this really going?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  The surface burn was probably across that pile on Sunday and Monday.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, that’s normally, then, when they call you to come over, right?  It’s that bad.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  They called me to come out and take a look at it, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, Monday you showed up.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And your assessment Monday was what?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  The size of the pile was so immense, it was three stories high in different areas.  We would need special equipment to get in and take this pile apart and put it out.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m going to do some Monday morning quarterbacking, which I don’t like, but let me just put it on the record.  You say that your folks are trained in these types of fires.  Is that correct?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  In trash/rubbish fires, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then you said you put over a hundred . . . 


CHIEF ARANAZ:  A million gallons of water.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  A million gallons of water on this.  I’ve read some articles in the Fresno Bee, hindsight, that we shouldn’t have done water; we should have done foam; it should have been certain types of foam; not done foam.  What was going through your mind?  Because you’re there.  I mean, of course, a week later, two weeks later, and a month later, we all could say what could have been done.  But at that point in time, given that your folks are trained in this, as you’ve just portrayed to the committee, why wasn’t the assessment made to utilize something other than water if that really wasn’t going to be put out—this fire—in the way that we thought?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Okay, remember, Senator, at three o’clock in the morning we have visible fire isolated to a very small portion of this pile.  At that time there’s no reason to suspect that we have an inferno underneath this entire four point eight acres.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of waiting until January 21st to use a different type of foam, how was that decision made?  Was that EPA, fire department experts?  I mean, how was that decision to use this different type of foam made?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Well, we asked for foam, and foam was delivered on January 14th.  That was Tuesday.  However, the type of foam that was brought out was looked at by EPA on Wednesday.  They did not know what the composition of that foam was so they asked not to use it.  EPA has experience using an F-500 foam.  That was ordered and was on the ground in a couple of days.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how long did that take given you’ve got foam and you had EPA say no, let’s use something different?  How long did that take roughly?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  That was Saturday.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Days-wise.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  EPA was there on Wednesday, so Wednesday, Thursday, Friday.  Three days.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, we lost three days.  Correct?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The mayor’s got a task force.  We’ve got a committee.  I’m sure that we’re all going to ask the question:  If one of these happens again, given that timeframe of the EPA saying, “Nope, we don’t like that foam, get another foam,” what can we do better in terms of coordinating that type of response hindsight?  Of course, it’s always hindsight.  Another fire breaks out, how can we get EPA actively involved so the wrong foam doesn’t get there?  Your thoughts.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  EPA did not send out the foam on Tuesday.  That was given to us by the US Forest Service from Sequoia National Park.  Had we called EPA on Monday and said, “What type of foam should we order?” then we could have been given the F-500 brand.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, maybe now we know we’d better talk to EPA if foam is being ordered prior to. . . . even if it’s free and it’s coming from US Forest, that’s something we can do better?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  If we had the right kind of foam that they were comfortable with, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All hindsight, I know.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Sure.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But we’re all proactively looking for the future how we can improve our performance, and I guess that would be something that you would probably recommend to the task force as well?


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Yes.  But again, I want to say that even though we had the foam on the ground, getting that penetrated into the pile without the heavy equipment, you’re kind of spinning your wheels.  Until we can get that berm built around the pile to contain the water, we really can’t be using it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Chief, I want to thank you, and I do want to say thank you for your efforts.  I’m sorry for this time of the tougher questions but that’s how we learn, and I just want to make sure that you know that we very much appreciate your men’s efforts and your efforts.  Obviously, we wouldn’t be sitting here today if that fire was still smoldering.  So, thank you very much for appearing before the committee.


CHIEF ARANAZ:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could we have Kurt Latipow, please?  Now we’re going to go to the state and federal agencies’ responses.  


You’re the onsite coordinator, Governor’s Office of Emergency Services?


MR. KURT LATIPOW:  Actually, Mr. Chairman, I was assigned as the state’s on-scene coordinator for this incident, coordinating all state agencies, including the boards and departments of Cal-EPA.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great, thank you.  And give me your role in terms of coordinating the extinguishing efforts between the agencies.


MR. LATIPOW:  Real quickly, I’d like to introduce Todd Thalhamer with Integrated Waste Board.  From an operational perspective, Todd was one of our most valuable resources in the coordination of the aggressive fire fight that took place.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we’re going to talk to Todd next, so Todd, you can sit, relax, or you can stand.  It’s up to you.


How many agencies were involved in fire suppression and cleanup efforts?


MR. LATIPOW:  From the state’s perspective, Senator?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. LATIPOW:  We had Office of Emergency Services, Integrated Waste Management Board, California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, Department of Health Services, OEHHA, Air Resources Board, and Regional Water.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, everyone pretty much.


MR. LATIPOW:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You have previous experience in fighting these types of fires in the Central Valley yourself?


MR. LATIPOW:  Yes, sir.  I was day ops on the Wesley tire fire when I was local government fire chief.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How does that fire compare to this?


MR. LATIPOW:  Much more complex.  That particular fire was much more complex where not only did we have a tire fire, but we actually also had an oil fire.  We had tremendous problems with containment of the runoff, as well as it was in a valley, which made the operation of just simply getting equipment in and out very cumbersome, as well as the atmosphere that the firefighters and the heavy equipment operators working within.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have any thoughts on why you were not contacted earlier about this fire?


MR. LATIPOW:  Why I wasn’t contacted earlier.  Understand that my role is when I get a phone call, I’m told where to go.  And I got a phone call and was on an airplane and dispatched.  As soon as I hit the ground in Sacramento, I started making my phone calls, getting the resources that were already en route.  We had already dispatched one of our field assistant chiefs to come and assist with any coordination that needed to be done prior to my arrival.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What day was that then?  January 11th is when the fire started.


MR. LATIPOW:  Thursday.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, Saturday the fire started.  Is that right?


MR. LATIPOW:  Once it became apparent that there were going to be multiple state agencies involved . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, Thursday is when you got called.


MR. LATIPOW:  Right.  That normally triggers the state on-scene coordinator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In terms of your opinion, in terms of operating and responding more quickly to situations like this, could we have done anything better here?


MR. LATIPOW:  Senator, if you’ll please humor me for a moment, my role, my mission, for the state is to provide support to the local government entities and coordinate state agencies.  Once we were notified and identified all of the resources that were going to be needed, we coordinated in a simultaneous fashion the movement and mustering, if you will, of those resources.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask it a different way.  If you were contacted the day after this fire started, would this have gone out any earlier or not?


MR. LATIPOW:  I wouldn’t say it would have gone out earlier.  We would have been able to put equipment on the road as requested by the local government.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, I gotcha.  The reason I ask that is that, obviously, the question is going to be asked:  Why the gap?  Why the delay?  I think I asked the city manager that question as well.  And I guess what you’re telling us is that one day or four days, we still would be on the timeline of this fire regardless.  Is that right?


MR. LATIPOW:  Yes.  I put together a presentation that I’ve gotten clearance from staff on, but I know your time is tight.  This is an extremely complex fire.  Not as complex as Wesley but it’s a whole different environment.  The environment that you’re working with on this fire had to have strict coordination from a safety perspective, from the outfitting of heavy equipment.  Brackets for the compressed air had to be manufactured on site.  Specialized training mandated by OSHA had to be done—initially the fifty firefighters—because they’re going to be working around some pretty heavy stuff, pretty heavy equipment.  Then, and only then, can you set everything in motion.  Not to mention the fact that the equipment that was ordered was specialized equipment.  The state always tries to go local.  Necessary attachments weren’t available locally.  Ultimately, the heavy equipment came from Livermore and Bakersfield.  One of the problems we had in moving heavy equipment into this incident was fog.  Caltrans does not like to issue permits for heavy equipment in the fog.  We had to place personal calls to Caltrans to expedite an emergency permit to get that heavy equipment on the road so it could get here so it could be outfitted so the operators could be trained.  So, there’s a lot of things happening simultaneously.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just one last comment.  Now, in terms of the cost figures, we’re going to get to that in a moment, but the city of Fresno, about $508,000.  County of Fresno, $53,000 plus.  Integrated Management, 810.  Can you give us an indication?  Federal?


MR. LATIPOW:  I can actually give you. . . . we’re running off of a CD here.  I’ve got a pie chart for you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. LATIPOW:  And I didn’t capture it in my notes because I’ve got it really well done on the pie chart.  


Part of the incident management team that was developed—the unified incident management team that was developed—was some very critical functions, such as finance.  And we had a finance section chief on site every day who was getting input from all the players so to speak.  And as of the tenth—and the tenth was a watershed day, if you will—as of the tenth, the fire suppression actually went to site stabilization.  What I’m going to give you is this is how the finance picture pretty much looked on the tenth.  The California Department of Forestry had $175,874.  Our office, the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services, had 114,000.  Integrated Waste had 810 and some change.  Our Regional Water partner, 16,000, and I’m still collecting the information from ARB.  So, you can see we did try to keep track of it pretty closely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Kurt, step on up.  I mean, not Kurt.  I’m sorry.  Todd Thalhamer, Waste Board representative.  Thank you for joining us.  Just a couple of quick questions.


Did someone from the Integrated Waste Management Board visit the Crippen site last November?


MR. TODD THALHAMER:  I’m unaware of that.  I’ve heard of that statement.  Again, you realize that I’m not actually part of inspections, permitting, and enforcement.  I deal with waste fires and environmental response.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Could you get that answer to us when you check back?


MR. THALHAMER:  Yes, I will.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  Since the city is responsible for oversight, how does your department interact here?  What is it you provide in terms of this?


MR. THALHAMER:  In terms of this response?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. THALHAMER:  I’m a technical expert on waste fires.  Basically, I got a phone call from Tim Casagrande on Tuesday at four thirty requesting my services to come look at the debris fire and give some technical advice to the city and county on this situation.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, does the Integrated Waste Board have jurisdiction over this site?


MR. THALHAMER:  I’d have to get back to you on that.  Again, I don’t work in the regulation industry of this field.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. THALHAMER:  I think they’re working on getting jurisdiction on this site, but currently, right now, I think it’s an unregulated facility.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Unregulated facility.


MR. THALHAMER:  From my understanding.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  It appears, in other discussions about this   site. . . . do you know if there was any groundwater contamination from this site?


MR. THALHAMER:  From the fire suppression offense or before the fire?  Just two things.  I know that they’ve tested the wells during the fire suppression, and we haven’t found any groundwater contamination.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you have not found any.


MR. THALHAMER:  Currently, no.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Currently, no.  Okay.


MR. THALHAMER:  From this fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’ve got some technical questions, a whole bunch of them, and you’re not going to be able to answer those.  Is that correct?


MR. THALHAMER:  On permits and regulations?  No.  Again, I specialize in waste fires.  I do Wesley.  I did the Tracy Pinochet tire fire.  You name it, I’ve been there in San Joaquin Valley and doing fire response.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me hold my questions then.  Thanks for joining us.


Rob Oglesby, Air Board.  Rob, good to see you again.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. ROB OGLESBY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just a simple question:  What role did you play in responding to this particular fire?


MR. OGLESBY:  The Air Resources Board role was to assist the local air districts on request at the time of the fire.  Originally it erupted, the local air district was in charge of the situation.  On January 16th, they requested some additional assistance in the form of supplementary monitoring equipment which we dispatched within hours and provided data from our existing monitoring sites.  We already had three on the ground within reasonable proximity to the fire site.  We located a mobile monitoring to the west and north of the site.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you the same question I asked Kurt.  Could we have done more if you were called earlier than four days after the fire began?


MR. OGLESBY:  I’d have to say that we were fortunate enough. . . . two part answer.  We were fortunate enough to have some existing assets on the ground that are being used for air quality monitoring, and that captured early data in the fire.  Had we been notified earlier or requested to move the mobile monitoring, we would have been able to have that in position at the early part of the fire when some of the smoke exposure was at its highest.  So, we had a gap in one sector during the early part of the fire.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do we have an idea of what type of particulates were in that smoke?


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, primarily the particulate that we were looking at, and that is the most troublesome to people with chronic respiratory problems, is particulates of the size 2.5 and below.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what does it mean for children and seniors and those who breathe those types of particulates?


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, I’d concur with the medical testimony you got earlier.  It can trigger events of asthma, respiratory distress with people with chronic health problems.  It can be quite severe.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of people, then, living around this particular area, are they any more apt to have more serious types of complications or is it just . . .


MR. OGLESBY:  They’re more apt to get a direct dose from the plume.  Our monitors basically showed that in the region there was one day in particular where there was a spike on hourly concentrations, but in general, when you looked over a 24-hour average over the whole period of the fire, the air PM 2.5 concentrations in the whole region weren’t particularly high—as bad—but not alarmingly bad.  Let me also add though, however, if you were in the area or neighborhood, a house that was in the direct path of the plume, you would get a pretty heavy dose.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just two other questions.  In terms of the monitors placed, are those within a certain mile radius, or were those placed randomly?


MR. OGLESBY:  The three monitors that we had on the ground already were placed for atmospheric monitoring purposes and also with some of the asthma studies we’re doing.  And they were to the north and east within several miles, and it was just happenstance that they happened to be in an area where it would be useful for this monitoring.  The mobile one we put within a mile on West McKinley Avenue, and the local air district already had a monitor operating south and slightly east of the fire site at the Fresno Chandler Downtown Airport.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Rob, very much.  Appreciate it.


MR. OGLESBY:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re going to move now onto the last two sections of the hearing, which are the cost of the fire.  We’re going to ask Bart Bohn to come back up.  And I would like to go through this very briefly.  It’s a very simple question:  What was the cost to the county in fighting the fire at the Crippen site?


MR. BOHN:  Senator Florez, our latest estimate up to date, as far as you know today, is about $61,000, and that’s primarily the cost of our staff members who have been part of the unified command throughout the exercise.  That cost was fully funded, and these are people who do emergency response operations as part of their normal duties.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then the other question is:  How will the county be reimbursed for their expenses?


MR. BOHN:  Well, we wouldn’t ask for reimbursement.  This is their normal duties.  They are to be working on environmental issues, and they’re fully funded to do what they did.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And lastly, then that would say that the county’s equipped for these such fires.


MR. BOHN:  The county’s equipped to play a role in a unified command, as we did in this case, with our environmental health staff.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.


MR. BOHN:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Same question, the city manager—Fresno city manager.  Dan Hobbs?  Okay.  
Let’s go to Kurt.  You gave us your estimates.  Those were correct that you put up on the board?  Okay.  Let’s move on then.  


Cynthia Sterling.  Thank you for joining the committee.  Let me first thank you very much for appearing, and let me just give you some general questions.


You live in the southwest Fresno area.  You represent the area on the city council.  It’s a very simple question:  How does this fire affect you personally?


COUNCILMEMBER CYNTHIA STERLING:  Well, first of all, thank you for having me here tonight, Senator.  Cynthia Sterling, councilmember for District 3.  Our address is Fresno and B Street.  We’re approximately two-and-a-half miles southeast of the fire.  And I’m a resident of the district.  I live right there.  So, the area in which the fire occurred is in my house.  


I do have a couple of comments I’d like to make, and then I will take your questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  Soon after the fire started, Mayor Autry, myself, and others in the community recognized the importance of the investigation to determine that if any city policies contributed to the fire. . . . to see if any city policies contributed to the fire at Archie Crippen’s excavation site; hence, the creation of the Southwest Fire investigative committee.  Given the uniqueness of this event, our task force was also charged with the job of creating an action plan for first responders to follow the event of a similar emergency.


On January 23rd. . . . in fact, I should say that I took office January 5th, 2003.  The fire started on January 11th, 2003 and within my first few days.  I held my first town hall meeting on January 23rd to assemble and disseminate information that was pertinent to the fire.  At this particular meeting, this was the first opportunity that I had to ask everyone in the audience. . . . and we did have a full house that night.  We did make an announcement through the media and the newspaper and just word of mouth because it was in the district, in District 3, so it was easy to get it out.  In fact, we had more people that night at the town hall meeting.  


At that time, I asked everyone to give me their names and anyone who was interested in working on the task force.  And I can give you the mission statement, but Deputy Mayor Montero will do that.  But just so that you will know, the people that asked to be on the task force were Dr. Kenneth Bird, Richard Caglia, Tim Casagrande, Harlan Kelly, Rey Leon, Karen McAllister. . . . actually no.  Ray Leon, Mary Ochoa, Frank Ochoa, Bill Walker.  There were a couple of people who did not attend.  One was Mike Bowen from District 3, but he has provided us with a number of informative papers that you may have already.  And Lynn Graham, who is with Fresno Unified School District.  What happened, we called everyone—my office did—asked them if they could attend or we didn’t get a response.  So, those are the members of the task force at this particular time.  Also, Henry Perea, our former councilmember, is our Research and Documentation Committee chair, and he was also appointed by the mayor.


At the meeting, and the days that followed soon afterward, Assemblymember Sarah Reyes was at our meeting that night along with other members from your area too, and she and I had a conversation on the Friday after the meeting, and at that particular time we discussed the concerns I had about not the task force but the health conditions.  She asked me if we could do something.  At that particular time, not knowing and not having that experience, I took her suggestion to assist me in that, and we formulated a health screening at Jane Adams Elementary School on February 1st, and we got the information out to the district as much as we possibly could through fliers and notification that was provided by us from the Assemblywoman.  You asked how this was financed earlier to Dr. Bird.  Well, what Assemblywoman Reyes did was she put her best foot effort to get it set up with the medical facility, and I took the liberty to ask people to provide food because we were having a health screening.  We had approximately 200 people.  Eighty people were referred to the medical doctor, and we had one emergency situation, that she did at that particular time find a response for about a three-year-old child so that he could have medical attention within a few days.  


Our task force again, as I said, consists of eleven people.  These individuals, other authorities and organizations, along with the Deputy Mayor Montero and myself, have met twice already, and Deputy Mayor Montero will give you the overview of our mission.  


Our first meeting covered some ground rules and a discussion of our mission.  We also determined the basic information each member of the task force would need to understand the complex issues at hand.  Our liaison with the city staff—Bob Koury—was asked to provide this information in writing and, if possible, a staff member attend a meeting for a presentation.  Richard Caglia and Tim Casagrande were also asked to provide information about recycling centers.


In our second meeting, they both presented some information, and Mr. Nick Yovino, along with Mr. Ray Beege(?), began to explain the conditional use permit process.  And we are just really scratching the surface of our task force.


The questions that have arisen about the nature of our closed meetings—and I’d like to explain—the task force was asked to do this by our mayor because in a closed meeting, we were asking people from all of the departments that would be reflective to come in and talk, and we were concerned that there were people that may not talk freely if the media and others were there.  So, that was the reasoning for the closed meeting.  There was a little confusion the first time.  I do apologize for your staff not being invited in.  At our second meeting, which we held this week, Susan Good and Alethea Jacobin(?) were both there, and any other elected officials that would like to have a representation are more than welcome to attend.


We will, however, have a few meetings that will be open to the public and to the press so that they are aware of what we are doing and to collect information.


At the conclusion of our examination, we will present a report to Mayor Autry and the city council—hopefully by the end of March.  The city council has asked that a report be ready by about the twenty-fifth, and that’s the date I am shooting for, hopefully.  This report will be also available to the public.  I want you to know that.  It will include recommendations for change in city policy so that events such as this are avoided insofar as the city can control.


Senator Florez, our city can only control so much.  I ask that you please ask the Investigated [sic] Waste Management Board to do a better job of helping us regulate these facilities or join with us, as I know that you are with Sarah Reyes, our Assemblywoman, in her introduction of Assembly Bill 240.  We cannot afford to ever let this happen again.  Our investigation is not the only one that is underway.  California’s OES and the fire marshal also are looking into issues surrounding this fire.  The report you get from these diverse viewpoints will give you a complete picture of the problem before us.


I would like again to thank you and other members of your committee for joining us for this inquiry into this problem.  And again, thank you for coming to Fresno.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.  Let me ask you a question.  You were reading a statement.  Did you write that statement?


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You did.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  You mean my statement on. . . . which one?  Which point?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The one you just read.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  Yes.  These are my notes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Those are your notes.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you a couple of questions in terms of the task force.  You say that some will be open, some will be closed, some will  be...?


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  The first two have been closed, getting the ground rules and the rules and regulations, getting people involved and seeing who was really interested and wanting to participate.  And also, former Councilmember Henry Perea set up kind of a pie chart on what is it that we’re actually going to be doing, and from the first meeting, we established our second meeting where our first guest was Nick Yovino and Ray Beege.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you talked about the permitting process?


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  At the first meeting we have been talking about the permitting process, the history of the process itself—that from Tim Casagrande—and these types of facilities, and a lot of questions and. . . . a lot of questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you the same question I asked the mayor.  It’s a standard question.  Do you think the city can adequately investigate itself since the meetings at this point in time have been private?  Your perspective only.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  Well, you have to remember, I am a resident of the district, and as a city council representative of District 3, which is a very unique district—and we have a lot of issues and concerns, a lot of problems—I feel that with me being on the task force, it’ll be my responsibility to make sure that this is a truthful and aggressive.  It’s going to hurt, yes, a lot of people.  It probably will.  But that’s the responsibility I’ve been charged to bring back to my district.  I have to face the people here.  These are the ones that vote for me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Same here.  It’s my district also.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.


COUNCILMEMBER STERLING:  I just got there, but it’s my responsibility.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.  Thank you very much.


Let’s have Roger Montero, the co-chairperson of the mayor’s task force.


MR. ROGER MONTERO:  Good evening, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What are your duties as the deputy mayor?


MR. MONTERO:  I serve at the pleasure of the mayor and appointed by the mayor and represent the mayor in different functions at City Hall.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what’s your responsibilities and duties in relation to the Fresno fire?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m sorry?  I don’t hear very well.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s your duties in terms of the Fresno fire?  Not task force related but as deputy mayor.  What’s your role in that?


MR. MONTERO:  In the administration of the fire?  I’m sorry, I don’t understand the question, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you tell the committee your responsibilities and duties in relation to the Fresno fire?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m the co-chair of the mayor’s Southwest Fire Process Improvement Task Force.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And Cynthia Sterling just talked about the February 12th meeting of the mayor’s task force, and the purpose of that meeting again   was…?


MR. MONTERO:  The purpose of the meeting. . . . in front of you, you have an agenda of that meeting.  The mayor made the opening remarks to the members of the task force.  We talked about task force dynamics, typical task force stuff, stated the mission, rules of conduct within the task force meetings.  Pretty standard stuff.  Respect for individuals and so forth.  We talked about public information, media management, data collection, report preparation, things of that nature.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there anything on this agenda that would make this meeting private?  I’m looking at it right now.  Just from your opinion.


MR. MONTERO:  Is there anything on the agenda that would make it private.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  You said in the Fresno Bee that the meeting of the task force was private, and I’m just trying to understand what you meant by that statement given that you just are showing us the agenda in public.  So, why was it private?


MR. MONTERO:  It was a task force meeting, Senator.  Task force meetings are generally private.  It’s a working task force.  We had a mission from the mayor, and task force meetings are generally private.  It was not a public hearing nor a public forum.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was this held in a public building?


MR. MONTERO:  Yes, it was held at City Hall.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You know that the state also is paying some dollars towards this.  The State of California is participating in this, paying something into this process.


MR. MONTERO:  I’m aware of that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there any problem with having the state participate in this private meeting then?


MR. MONTERO:  Is there any problem?  If we had been contacted, I think we probably could have worked that out.  At this time I don’t see any problem with it at all.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, no problem with it.  Okay.  


Now, you were quoted as saying, “We invite people.  They just don’t show up and butt in,” end of quote, and I’m kind of wondering what you meant by that statement.


MR. MONTERO:  Exactly what it means.  Exactly what I said.  Do you need further clarification?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I do.


MR. MONTERO:  Okay.  When the mayor or anyone else appoints members to a task force, just like you appoint members to your select committee, they’re appointed and they’re invited to attend.  Typically, people just don’t come in and announce to you that they’re going to “join” your task force or committee.  That’s the answer to your question.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was it represented to you that my staff member wanted to “join” your task force?


MR. MONTERO:  That’s what the task force was for.  It’s a working task force, Senator.  And we assumed that if they were going to come in, they would want to work on the task force.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That was your assumption?


MR. MONTERO:  That was my assumption, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you run the task force, or you’re co-chair?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m co-chair.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you ask your counterpart, the other co-chair, what she thought about that?


MR. MONTERO:  Well, actually, she brought it to my attention on the February 12th meeting right about five minutes before the meeting convened.  Someone came in and told her that there was a representative of your staff that wanted to join the meeting.  Councilmember Sterling looked at me and she said, “I don’t think that’s a good idea.”  I concurred, and the message was taken.  I don’t even know who it was that showed up.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, it was a joint decision.


MR. MONTERO:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  By you and Councilmember Sterling.


MR. MONTERO:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now, in the same article, you said that I was, quote, “grandstanding,” and I guess, Mr. Montero, I’d like to know what your definition of “grandstanding” is.


MR. MONTERO:  I won’t answer that question, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why not?


MR. MONTERO:  Because it’s not pertinent to this hearing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely pertinent.


MR. MONTERO:  No, it is not.  If you’d like for me to go through the mission of our task force and our goals, I’ll be happy to do that.  But you know as well as I, I’m not going to get into that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, let me tell you why I believe it’s pertinent.  I chair a committee called the Select Committee on Central Valley Air Quality.  There was a fire.  It was in my district.


MR. MONTERO:  Yes, I’m aware of that.  I’m the co-chair of the task force regarding that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Exactly.  It was in my district.  The state’s put money into it.  And our job is to oversight air quality in the Central Valley.


Are you a co-chair of a committee looking into this air quality issue?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m sorry, I didn’t hear that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you a co-chair of a committee or a task force looking into this issue?


MR. MONTERO:  Other than the mayor’s task force?  Other than that task force?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


MR. MONTERO:  No, I’m not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re not on the task force?


MR. MONTERO:  I am co-chairing the task force.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Doing what?  What is the task force doing?  What is it looking into?


MR. MONTERO:  The task force is co-chaired by myself and Councilmember Sterling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What is the task force looking into?


MR. MONTERO:  There are three missions as directed by the mayor:  a thorough analysis of any and all city methods, procedures, and policies related to this issue for the purpose of assembling factual, supportive documentation.  Item one.


Item two:  The preparation of a comprehensive report that will include a compilation of relevant data and recommendations for procedural improvement.


Item three:  The development of an action plan by which first responders will be expected to perform in the event of a similar emergency.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is this related to the fire?


MR. MONTERO:  It’s relative to city process and procedures in emergencies like this, yes.  The Crippen fire . . . 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  This isn’t a waste water task force, right?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m sorry?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  This isn’t a waste water task force, is it?


MR. MONTERO:  No, it’s not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is it a task force on transportation?


MR. MONTERO:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Task force on roads?


MR. MONTERO:  No.  Actually, it’s the Mayor’s Southwest Fire Process Improvement Task Force.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And that is why it’s pertinent that my committee look into this.  Would you agree?


MR. MONTERO:  As I mentioned before, yes, I do agree.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, why is it grandstanding?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m not going to get into that with you, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, that’s fine.  Well, I guess I need to know that because normally . . .


MR. MONTERO:  Any more than it’s an obstruction of justice.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Normally, Mr. Montero, elected officials are not normally attacked by staff, and I’m just kind of wondering why you would refer to that, and I’m asking you publicly . . .


MR. MONTERO:  It was in response to a comment that you made that we were obstructing justice, and I thought that was political grandstanding, and I still do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You still do.


MR. MONTERO:  Yes, I do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, you’re entitled to your opinion.


MR. MONTERO:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But I will tell you one thing.


MR. MONTERO:  Tell me one thing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Excuse me?


MR. MONTERO:  I said tell me one thing, please.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I’ll tell you a couple now.


MR. MONTERO:  All right, good.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me say that our job in this committee is to, in essence, deal with an issue of air quality.  In fact, I’ve just introduced a major package of air quality bills that you will probably read about and we will push forward in the next couple of days.  I’d like to work with. . . . and I have a great working relationship with the mayor.  I believe I do.  But I’m kind of wondering why I have such a horrible working relationship with you.


MR. MONTERO:  I don’t know.  We’ve never talked before this evening.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, your testimony before this committee and to this chairman doesn’t give me any reason to believe that you and I will probably work very well together.


MR. MONTERO:  I don’t think so either based on the attacks that. . . . you obviously didn’t bring me up here to gather information about our task force.  You brought me up here to attack me, so.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I’m asking you questions.


MR. MONTERO:  No.  I understand, Senator.  You made your point.  You’ve humiliated me in front of this body.  If that was your intent, congratulations.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, Mr. Montero.  You made a public comment in a public paper.


MR. MONTERO:  As did you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.  Was it directed at you, Mr. Montero?


MR. MONTERO:  Yes, it was actually.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Really.


MR. MONTERO:  Yes, it was.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you like me to read it to you?


MR. MONTERO:  Not necessarily.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you like to read it to the committee?


MR. MONTERO:  Not necessarily.  If you’d like to, go right ahead, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, no.  I’m just saying, it was not directed at you.  If anything, Ms. Sterling should be up here giving me the lecture, not yourself.


MR. MONTERO:  I’m not giving you any lecture.  I think you’re giving me one.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m just letting you know, when you say things in the public . . .


MR. MONTERO:  I came up here to give you information based on your invitation.  I can read your invitation specifically.  I didn’t know I was going to come up here and be attacked by you, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Montero?


MR. MONTERO:  And I’m sorry you feel the necessity to do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Montero, I’ve gone through many, many    hearings . . .


MR. MONTERO:  As have I.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  . . . in my four years as an assemblyman.  I’ve gone through Oracle hearings over a hundred hours, and believe me, I’m not attacking you, Mr. Montero.  You should take the time to watch some of our hearings.  I’m asking you a question that you stated in the public record, and I’m simply asking you why you consider this committee’s work grandstanding.  That is absolutely appropriate.


MR. MONTERO:  I’ve already answered your question, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what was your answer?  Let me get it clear for the record.


MR. MONTERO:  It was in direct response to your comment about obstruction of justice.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do you believe it’s good policy for staff to attack legislators who bring money to the table and try to help?  Just your opinion.  [lengthy pause]


MR. MONTERO:  Do you have any questions on the task force, Senator?  I’d be happy to answer them.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  It’s been a month since your task force has met.  Is that correct?  Have you discovered anything?


MR. MONTERO:  We met the first time on February 12th.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you discovered anything since then?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m sorry?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Discovered anything since then?  The task force.


MR. MONTERO:  You’ll pardon me.  I don’t hear well, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Montero, has the task force—thank you for putting that up—discovered anything different since you’ve been meeting?  You’ve had two meetings now?


MR. MONTERO:  We’ve had two meetings.  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Anything you could give the committee in terms of where you’re going?


MR. MONTERO:  Yes.  As a matter of fact, I think if you’ll take a look at the document that I provided for you, under the “Archie Crippen Excavation Fire Instance, City of Fresno, Areas of Concern From an Internal Audit Perspective,” as prepared by our internal auditor, Bob Koury, it goes into great detail on the process that we’ll follow in gathering information, analyzing it, and then finally preparing the report.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You were here earlier when our education folks were talking about having a role on the task force?


MR. MONTERO:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you believe that they should have a role on the task force?


MR. MONTERO:  Well, the public has a role on our task force.  As a matter of fact, the only city members of the task force are the two co-chairs.  Everyone else is from the general public.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Education-specific, anyone on the task force?


MR. MONTERO:  Is there someone on the task force from the education field?  I’m sorry.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, that’s my question.


MR. MONTERO:  I beg your pardon.  I only have ten percent of my hearing in my left ear, and I don’t hear well.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there anyone from the educational field on your task force?


MR. MONTERO:  Yes.  Well, there was one, but she chose not to show up, and I don’t know the reason.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you plan on replacing this person?


MR. MONTERO:  Cynthia and I haven’t talked about it at this point, but it’s certainly something that we should investigate.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who has the ultimate authority of this task force?  Who drives this task force?


MR. MONTERO:  Process-wise?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. MONTERO:  The co-chairs.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the mayor’s relationship to the task force then?


MR. MONTERO:  The mayor is separated from the task force.  He has chosen not to have input into the task force for obvious reasons:  he doesn’t want to influence the outcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the work of the task force then, the mayor is quoted. . . . or you quote the mayor as promising the task force members will have, quote, “total access to city data, research, and information,” end of quote.  Is that same promise extended to the general public, or is that just for the task force?


MR. MONTERO:  The general public has always had complete access to public records.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  City data, research, and information?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m sorry, sir?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  City data, information, and research?


MR. MONTERO:  Anything that’s a public record the public has access to.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In terms of the general public, you are in this fact-finding mode?  Is that correct?  So, in other words, you’re interviewing?


MR. MONTERO:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And those are public or are those private meetings?


MR. MONTERO:  Typically, it’s done during working hours. As I mentioned in the attachment, throughout the task force we’ll discuss the issues, and any documentation codes—any information—are given to Mr. Koury.  It’s his responsibility as our liaison to return to the task force with that information.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of Councilmember Sterling’s comments earlier regarding the health screenings—you’re aware of this health screening?


MR. MONTERO:  Yes, I am.  I’m aware of it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What was the city’s part in this health screening?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m not aware of the city’s part in that.  I wasn’t in town at the time, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Were you part of a decision not to sponsor the health screening for residents?


MR. MONTERO:  I’m sorry?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Were you ever asked to help sponsor this for residents, the health screening?  Were you personally asked?


MR. MONTERO:  Oh, no.  I was out of town.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you have no role in the decision on that.


MR. MONTERO:  No, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s all the questions I have.  Thank you.


MR. MONTERO:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is Mr. Hobbs still around?  We missed you earlier.


Dan, just a quick question.  We were on the cost.  We listened to Mr. Bohn.  Kurt put his numbers up.  What are the costs to the fire to date?


MR. HOBBS:  The cost of the fire to the city to date is $63,000 net out of pocket, not budgeted.  The value of the service provided to put this out is about $400,000.  The distinction that I draw there is this 63,000 is over and above the cost of services from people who are available and on duty.  Those firefighters are budgeted.  If they weren’t fighting this fire, they would be engaged in other activity.  So, it was not a net cost to the city.  But if we were going to bill somebody, which we’re going to be talking about, for this, that bill would be $400,000.  Is that distinction clear?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, it is, thank you.  And in terms of the repayment or reimbursement, I know that you have talked to both the mayor and also the county state of emergency designations.  The Governor—any word?  Are you asking him?  Are we participating?  Is there funds available at the state level?  What’s happened since then?


MR. HOBBS:  Are you talking about cost recovery for our expenses or the state?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The overall.  Kurt’s mentioned what the state’s picking up, but in terms of additional dollars, no more need for additional dollars?


MR. HOBBS:  I haven’t heard any more beyond the commitments that have been made, and those commitments were made directly by the state and EPA to various contractors who came in and helped us put out the fire.  But at some point, I think there may be a cost recovery reimbursement issue for the city that we will need to explore with Mr. Crippen and maybe some other parties.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You mentioned that earlier.  Thank you very much.



Okay, we’re at the end of the hearing.  It’s time for some public comment.  Let me give you the rules if I can:  five minutes each.  And we have Paul Irvin.  Is he still here?  Come on up.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. PAUL IRVIN:  Thank you, Senator.  Helps to get here early.  I got first on the list.


My name’s Paul Irvin.  I’m a biomass management waste consultant.  I’ve been in the biomass energy business. . . . I was in the biomass energy business for fourteen years.  I’m currently working on some biomass air quality issues with your associate, Senator Denham, on your committee.  I’ve been asked to head up a task force of biomass processors here in South Fresno and some that are located in other parts of the city.


What has happened is, and especially after hearing the comments tonight, there seems to be somewhat of a fear of these processors; that now that all of this has happened, all of a sudden the regulations are going to get enforced, people are going to start coming down on them, the yard’s going to be closed down, and then we’re going to be back to square one.  Whether that happens or not, I don’t know.  But based on my experience, and seeing how regulations work in the State of California, unfortunately, I think regulation got us here.  


You’re familiar with AB 939.  Most of your landfills in the large metropolitan areas have been required to reduce their waste, and unfortunately, a lot of it ends up in the valley.  The local processors are competing with those waste streams, and they have been for years due to economics, due to convenience, due to location.  And with most things that happened in the city of Fresno—I’ve been here going on fifteen years—most things that I’ve seen happen in the city of Fresno were the result of the trickle-down effect.  The regulations kick in at the metropolitan areas—they take care of their houses—and things tend to trickle towards the valley.  Well, we have an air quality issue here now.  We have over a million tons of ag waste that something has to be done with every year.  We can no longer burn over a million tons of ag waste.  Currently, I am working with Senator Denham on a bill to help eliminate some of those problems.  


Along with that, I’ve been asked by the suppliers to head up a committee to see what we can do to understand how we got here, how we can keep from having something like this happen again; and personally, I have been involved with extinguishing two large biomass fires in Mendota over the last five years.  Just to tell you how industry does it, we spent less than $30,000 on each fire, and they were both larger than this fire.  But we were prepared ahead of time.  There was some preventive maintenance.  There were some proactive things we had to do in order to site a biomass facility in the area we put it.


And so, some of the problems we’re looking at is the confusion of local, state, and federal laws regulating these wastes.  What’s evident tonight is you have an overlap of authority that doesn’t seem to really pinpoint who’s responsible during any point in time of the year.  We have county LEAs, integrated waste management oversight, and from what I understand, they’re now evaluating the LEA from the state level.  We have federal and then we have local air districts.  Local air districts have been very cooperative on the biomass industry.  We see benefits to air quality in the valley from helping to provide this service, this group does, and they want to continue providing this service.  And so, they would like to actively be involved with what takes place from this day forward.  


One of the members of the task force is probably the largest processor on the south end of town.  It’s not located in the same area; it’s a little farther south.  He would like to continue.  He’s handling half of the Fresno city green waste program.  The other half of the Fresno city green waste, as you may know, is out in Kings County because the city of Fresno has not been able to deal with it in this area.


I’d like to leave you my card.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  And I hope that you’ll look for a bill that we just introduced on biomass facilities out tomorrow.  I think it’s Senate Bill 709.


MR. IRVIN:  Great.  Thanks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


Mary Ochoa?  And next we’ll have Sultan Ahmed.  Thank you for joining us.


MS. MARY OCHOA:  Hi, Senator Dean Florez.  I’m Mary Ochoa.  


They keep talking about a paper that was sent out to each of the residents that live less than a mile away.  We never received anything.  Not one paper saying, “Hey, there’s a fire, it’s hazardous.”  Nothing.  I just barely seen it today.  I think this is it.


I kept asking what to do; what we can do and not do.  Well, we all got sick.  I have a five-month-old baby at the house with a humidifier plus a little vaporizer where she’s on Albuterol.  She’s got asthma now which she never had.  And we’ve all had treatments.


So, I think they’ve just got to be a little bit more careful and watch before they set up so close to residential areas.


And I thank you for letting me be here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Mary, very much.  And we are going to be working on those procedures, as I know the task force is as well.


Sultan Ahmed?  Sultan?  No one here?  Kevin Hamilton.  Anyone here?  Barbara Hunt.  Barbara, thank you for coming.  And on deck is Michael O’Hare.  I know Michael’s here.  I see him right there.


MS. BARBARA HUNT:  This is a privilege, Mr. Florez.  I’m so glad you’re here.  I’m glad you’re here!


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Barbara.


MS. HUNT:  These people here, you’re doing exactly right.  This city council board, they don’t let people talk.  You can see me on television.  They try to shut me up all the time when I talk about these issues, but I still talk.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You have five minutes.


MS. HUNT:  Well, I’m going to use one of them up talking about them.  And then the other four I’m going to use talking about this fire because the international fire department should have been there.  They shouldn’t have waited so long.  And then the fire department shouldn’t have said we’re going to let this fire burn for two days.  To me it’s a conspiracy because they’ve got a _________ business park right across the street over there.  They’re not fooling me.  They’ve got that big ol’ hump of dirt.  They want this land.  We’re in a charter city.  _________________ rules and regulations and analysis, which is against the law, and then everybody’s here acting like this is a big joke.  I’m glad you’re grilling them!  I wish all the state come down here.  I wish they’d come down here and take this place.  This place is a joke!  I’m in this place every Tuesday in my seat, and I know what goes on.  When I want to talk about this issue, Boyajian want to shut me up, cut me off.  


When I want to talk about—what’d you call it?  This ________ business; eminent domain, thousands of acres.  Shut me up.  I talk about this big ol’ dump about to blow up out there where the kids are going to be playing out there on Jensen, the regional park, which is illegal.  They haven’t did their super______ fund.  I want you to take this book back with you, but I want it back.  This is where the city paid $18 million to close this super_____ fund.  They’ve haven’t did this.  I’ve got books for you.  Anything.  The address and system, city of Fresno.  They’ve got ______ Park over here.  It’s going to blow up.  They talked about that Orange Avenue dump—Perea.  It’s going to blow up.  They talk about this Dan Green.  They supposed to have been gone.  They still there.  Why?  The court ordered them to go.  Why are they still there?  They talked about the one out here on 99.  Those people are supposed to be going—a big junkyard, a dump.  There was a fire over there last night by my house.  I live over there.  


Nobody talked about the breathing.  One meeting at a school.  Ain’t nobody ever sent this.  They’re telling a lie.  Ain’t nobody emphasize where we going.  Ain’t nobody says where we go for these meetings, where we go to get help, where do we go to take our children.  Nobody addressed these issues!  I haven’t heard nothing.  My sister died.  She lived right across from this Computech.  I heard Cynthia Woods want to talk about this here.  I’m sick, my breathing is poor.  My mother’s over there sick.  Everybody on the west side of Fresno over there.  Nobody’s addressing these issues.  They’re hush-mouthing it.  


The State of California needs to take over this Fresno because they’re giving it away for one dollar—all your land.  _________ out here, this ballpark over here.  That’s illegal.  We’re supposed to own these things.  This is not no 2600 Fresno Street.  This is P Street, this place right in here.  Convention Center, all the tax increments, the mergers.  Pretty soon we’re not going to have a city of Fresno.  They’ve given all our stuff away, and I’m glad you’re up here.  I’m glad to voice my opinion.  I want you to get people down here on redevelopment because it’s illegal. 


Perea told me.  Rita Belman is __________!  Where you at, Perea?  I’ll tell you right here to your face.  Like I told them on TV, I’m not afraid.  I was born here, and I want somebody to come here and save Fresno.  These people come in here.  We’re in a siege.  We’re in a war.  I heard the mayor say it in the paper.  That’s bubba.  I heard him say it.  Why do we get all these problems on the west side of Fresno?  We’ve got a recycling plant coming up over there, for a transfer station coming up, for all the garbage and all these regional areas going to dump on the west side of Fresno.  We’ve got another place up there on West Fresno.  We’ve got so much stuff—_______ farms, turkey farms.  We’ve got so we’re drinking recycled sewage water.  All this water we got in the mountains.  There’s something that need to be done.  The State of California need to come down here and take over this city of Fresno before we won’t have a city because they’re giving it away!


I’ve got some more time left.  I’ve got to get it in.  I don’t care.  I’ve been waiting for you to come here, the State of California.  These peoples is lying in here.  They’re so scared they got to ________, and I’m so happy.


We’re in a charter city.  Thirty-seven in California.  They want to take everything away.  They want to regionalize this stuff.  Madera’s not no charter city.  They’re taking people in.  They’ve got an addressing system.  West Fresno?  I was born over there fifty-eight years ago.  They tell me West Fresno starts on Thorne.  If West Fresno start on Thorne, that ____________ zone is no good, the enterprise zone is no good because where’s the twenty percent poor people at?  That East Fresno, southeast Fresno, from way out there in Clovis, way over here on Thorne.  How did we get over here?  


I’ve got the papers.  As I matter of fact, I’m going to give you them too.  I want you to investigate this.  I’m going to give you some papers.  I want to shut this place down or you guys coming here and taking over before we have England, Europe, Russia, Germany—everybody—owning this place. 


Thank you very much. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Barbara.


MS. HUNT:  I’m so happy.  Now I can go home.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Michael O’Hare.  Thank you, Barbara.


MS. HUNT:  But I’m going to leave you this book.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sergeants, can we grab that?  Thank you.


MS. HUNT:  This was the book for that landfill out there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I gotcha.


MS. HUNT:  I’m going to leave you this one here about this addressing system because we’re using an addressing system.  I’m going to leave you these protocols and bylaws for redevelopment.  These are redevelopment bylaws.  I’ve got so much.  This is what the people talk in 1976 about redevelopment bylaws.  I got some more stuff here for you.  I’ve turned these papers into the grand jury.  I’ve got papers down with Eagen(?).  I love that Eagen woman because she’s going to get these political people.  I’m happy.  I’ve got papers to give her.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Barbara, we’re not going to be able to read those if you don’t hand them to us.


MS. HUNT:  No, I’m going to give them to him, but this is important.  The city of Fresno Development Department addressing system.  This is how they ___________.  We’ve got West Fresno way out there in Clovis on Willow.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much, Barbara.


MS. HUNT:  You’re going to have fun.  I’m going to give you all kinds of papers.  Thank you very much.  I’d like to have them back, though, when you get through.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Michael O’Hare?  Is Rey Leon here?  Rey Leon?  Okay.  Rey, are you here?  You’re up next, okay?  I just want to make sure we move this.


Michael, thank you for joining us.


MR. MICHAEL O’HARE:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  I appreciate you taking the time to come down here and to listen to the community on this issue.


I’m a school board member, Fresno Unified School District.  We have seven schools in West Fresno plus a number of other facilities over there that the fire and the air quality has affected.  I feel that the lack of the administration—this administration and the city—and previous administrations has allowed an abuse of the codes in here which has enabled the health of our students and our citizens to be in danger.  We actually probably provided a better healthy environment in the school itself than the children had at home because the homes in that area are of such age that the closed systems that we have in our schools provided the    one. . . . the area that provided clean air for the students during the day.  We have them, probably, half the time.


We have a number of what we call Neighborhood Resource Centers there where we do collaboration with the city and the county in a number of areas.  As they stated, at Adams we provided the school site there.  Assemblymember Reyes with the UCSF staff, the faculty there, and also part of the coordination with community with their asthma foundation and education, provided some of the help in the needs of some of our students.  Sunnyside Doctors Academy were over there doing the health.  


We are involved, and we are concerned about the health of our community, especially those in areas like that where we see a tremendous. . . . a lot of abuse of codes; not just this type of thing but other things there.


Anybody in this county knows about spontaneous combustion; anybody that grows alfalfa or any type of hay.  And when you do that, you have to separate it.  Most of the farmers, you’ll notice, only have a certain amount of hay in one area, and then they separate it by aisleways in case there is spontaneous combustion.


It seems here that there was no thought to this even on biomass.  We do need to recycle, we do need to have biomass, but we need to do it in a way that protects the community from having this type of situation reappear again.


I’m sure either I or someone from our board would be more than happy to serve on the task force if we were asked so that we can see how we can improve and respond to the community as a whole.  


Thank you very much.  Any questions?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Michael.  No.  Appreciate it.


Rey Leon and then Emily Perez next.


MR. REY LEON:  Good evening, Senator.  A pleasure having you here in the San Joaquin Valley.  


I’m Rey Leon with the Latino Issues Forum Environmental Health Project, Public Policy and Advocacy Institute, and we’re committed here in the valley to advancing the quality of life for the Latino population, specifically in terms of environmental health.  We’re looking at air quality, at asthma, and a number of other issues that we’re plagued with here in the valley.


Of course, one of them is this fire here in Fresno which is having a huge impact.  And as we study, as we research, as we dialogue, as we question, as we interrogate, one thing that we are continuing to overlook is the public health of the community in that immediate area.  It has been mentioned that there are people that are having to go out and buy more medication and having to go out and get more medical attention.  We’re talking about a community that is low income, a community of people of color; a community that really needs some more attention in terms of economic attention to assist them in being able to take care of the issues, the medical issues, that they’re having to deal with.  It’s an issue that could have been prevented long ago, of course.  That wasn’t the case.  I mean, we know a few of the reasons why that didn’t happen:  again, a community of color, low income.


But I just wanted to state the fact that there is no fund to assist the families, the elders, the infants, that are dealing with this problem, and it’s taking out of their pocketbooks, taking away from the food off the table, and I think we’ve really got to pay attention to that and be able to attend to that.


Our organization is looking into working on some of that, and you’ll be hearing from us soon.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Emily Perez?  Not here?  Dan Ronquillo?  I know Dan’s here.  And Billy Davis is after Dan.


COUNCILMEMBER DAN RONQUILLO:  First of all, let me thank you, Senator, for being a part of the Senate subcommittee regarding quality of air and taking the time to be here today.  


I have to apologize for the criticism you received because, really, the real answer is going to be a partnership between not just the city of Fresno but the cities and the state legislators putting together the kind of teeth we need to work on this issue.


As a councilman, I was approached by members of my community numerous times on another Dan Green issue, and this city was unable to, even though we had five votes, to force them to comply with the CUP.  We did not have the legal ability—unless we have incompetent attorneys—to stop them.  We did not have the ability to require the conditions because a real crafty attorney figured out a way to get them on there with a mobile chipper that could sidestep the CUP process, and the headaches started from there.  


But we did use Dan Green as a vehicle of trying to figure out how we could impose a citywide. . . . and you heard many comments by the council on that issue.  In fact, I’ll submit this and read this, on the date of March ’01 when we had the presentation by the community and had numerous sites that were probably in violation.  The council—the motion was made—and Boyajian, Calhoun, and Duncan, Quintero, myself, and Perea—and there was one abstention because he was out of town—the motion was real specific:  staff directed to research and report back on contaminated Dan Green site; city financial assistance in relocating Dan Green’s recycling (which I wouldn’t have supported but one of the councilmen wanted it in there); enforcement of current ordinance relative to property shown in the video; and staff further directed to work with Mr. Kelly and involved groups relative to legal strategies, future zoning, and changes for the area if necessary.


This was real specific, and we were trying to get the ball rolling on it.  As I understand, you might get some information—testimony—from Mr. Yovino that through the general plan as of November, the city finally has the ability to impose a guideline on it.


How are we going to prevent these things from happening in the future, whether it’s the city of Fresno or any other city in California?  I’m going to tell you, Senator, it is not simple, but we’re going to have to have state legislation that gives the cities the authority.  AB 939, imposed on us by state legislation in 1989, told us what to do but didn’t give us the ability to do that.  I don’t know what the legal department has spent on fighting Dan Green, on this gentleman’s ability to actually impose his operation on five acres that he can’t get on.  He’s on M-1.  By right he was legally able to do that.  But he brought his operation on five additional acres.  We have been in court three years—what, four hundred thousand anyway at least—just to try and fight one man that’s able to fight us.  If every one of these recyclers do the same thing, it’ll break the city or any city.  We need the state to revisit AB 939 and come up with a way for us to do that.


One, state laws giving cities some teeth.  Bonding.  Anything from small—let’s say somebody wants to recycle ten cans or aluminum cans—it might be a $10,000 bond.  To site something like Mr. Crippen, a $5 million bond just in case they abandon the site, as we brought up in testimony right here.  I was real specific because we had Visalia that lost a million dollars because the city had to move in on somebody that had abandoned a site.  Inspection to be paid for by the recyclers—period—every three or four times a year.  And they can measure the dimensions on what they’re supposed to have.  They’re on-site.  Not like our staff from the fence.  On-site.  And business owners to also own, not lease, own the property in which they operate their businesses.  If we’re able to do those things, I think we will come to some solution in the future.


And again, Senator, thank you very much.  I emphasize that, really, without state involvement on this, there’s not going to be any immediate answer.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Dan, for those very constructive comments.  Appreciate it.


Billy Davis?  Don Bowen?  Joanie Johnson?  Gloria Torres?  Oh, Joanie, come on up.  Is Gloria Torres here also?  Okay, you’re next.


MR. JOANIE JOHNSON:  Good evening.  My name is Joanie Johnson, and I’m here representing Fresno Neighborhood Alliance, Post Office Box 5956, Fresno, California, 93755.  We are an organization that’s nonprofit, and we network with approximately fifty neighborhood groups and organizations in the Fresno metropolitan area.  


We recommend that the city of Fresno develop a procedure for annual post-construction special permit reviews including conditional use permits with required unannounced staff site visits.  This doesn’t mean that existing facilities should be exempted from this.  There has to be a way for them to be worked into this process.  


Sites containing flammable and/or toxic materials shall be site inspected on an as-needed basis with at least a minimum of one yearly inspection conducted with the assistance of the Planning Department, the Fire Department, Code Enforcement, Health, and Air Pollution Control resource persons.  The special permit review shall be conducted under the supervision of the Development Department of the city of Fresno.


It’s also Fresno Neighborhood Alliance’s policy to support public members with particular expertise such as medicine and economics to serve on our valley air board.  We feel that such a board makeup would have been better able to understand and respond to the health effects and costs of a fire like the Crippen fire.


Thank you for opening this matter to public input.  We welcome you here, and we thank you for your assistance in this big dilemma.  And I have this in written comment form.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  If you’ll submit that, that would be wonderful.  Thank you, Joanie.


Gloria Torres.  Thank you for joining us.


MS. GLORIA TORRES:  Thank you, Senator.  


My main concern with the Crippen fire is that innocent people were. . . . their health was violated.  This usually happens with the poor.  And I believe that if this fire were in the north part of town, it would have been out the first day.  When I came up here the first time, I said, “This stinks like politics, and it sounds like somebody’s trying to get some money out of federal and state,” and I was hoping that it was not so.  And I still hope it’s not so because we really need to address the air quality issues here.


In the 1980 ________ general plan, the sole pollutant listed in that was cars.  The city is still not addressing that.  I’ve come up here for the sixth year asking for them to give us increased frequencies on key lines.  I ride the bus, and we need to get out of that air.  We sit out there sometimes half an hour to an hour, sometimes longer, breathing that air from the cars and also the particulates that are stirred up as the cars go by and also when the busses pull up so we can load on.  This needs to be addressed.  Like I said, it has not been addressed.


In the year 2000, I believe we had something that came to the council where we had to pick the chosen fuel.  A committee was put together and staff, and they chose clean air diesel; yet, a member on the council went against that.  And I think that’s why the sanctions have gone, making it appear as if we have really polluted air.  I looked out today, and it looked nice and pretty and blue.  


Like I say, a lot of this is not addressed.  Sixty percent of the pollution is cars, and like I say, it’s not being addressed.  We need to get more busses out there to get us out of that.  The year 1999, we had busses ordered and paid for, and they have never come in.  The year 2000, we received 6 million from one source, and that was COG.  That was for busses, and we never got the busses.  The year 2001, we received over 11 million, again from COG, and we still didn’t receive busses.  Going back to the year 2000, we had money left over from Measure C.  I was told we were going to get those frequencies.  We never did get the frequencies, we never did get the busses.  And then this last year November, we supposedly received the busses, but they were sent back.  We got the clean air diesel busses, but they were sent back so they could be converted to the natural gas.  We don’t even have a pumping station to fuel those.  It would have been more economical, a lot wiser, to have kept the clean air diesel busses to get those frequencies instated so we would get out of the dirty air.


And like I say, I want to see some kind of legal mechanism or a law that will keep the monies that’s allotted to entities such as _______.  We’re supposed to be getting federal, state, Measure C, COG, grant, contingency, carryover money, and monies that we get from the fair box; and we also get monies from advertisement.  That’s a lot of monies; but yet, we have a very poor system.  We still have about the same amount of busses that we had in 1984.  We’re not getting any better; yet, they talk about getting people out of their cars.  People are not going to get out of their cars with the kind of system that we’re offering them.  It’s all wrong.  Who’s the one that’s taking the brunt of this?  The poor people.  And I see a lot of times where the Park and Rides will go to the rich.  They don’t have to pay; but yet, they nickel and dime us.  And a lot of times I see women with four and five children that cannot afford to pay, and a lot of times I see them walking.  You know, that’s wrong.  It’s all messed up.


I’m hoping that you can help with some of these laws, regulations, and get the politics out of here.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Gloria.  Very much appreciate it.


Any other public comment?  Come on up.  Just state your name for the record.


MR. STUART CHANDLER:  I didn’t sign up.  My name is Stuart Chandler.  We’ve met before.  And I’m a civil attorney working on litigation involving this.


But in response to what Councilmember Ronquillo was saying about some of the frustrations from the legal standpoint, my only comment to the committee would be to encourage you, Senator, to try to keep the teeth in the Business and Professions Code 17200 because that’s one of the avenues that we in the civil justice system have for putting a stop to things like this.  Part of what we’re trying to remedy in this particular situation is injunctive relief.  If somehow through the code enforcement process these things get hung up, we in the civil justice side—and I represent Doctor Raymond Baker who is one of the residents there who’s been affected—we have and we have included as part of the relief we’re seeking in court is an injunction against this particular operation.  But certainly, 17200 gives us teeth in similar situations in the future.  


So, I just wanted to throw that out for your consideration because I know those are going to be coming up—or those questions or challenges in the Legislature this year.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Yes.


MR. KELLY:  Senator, my name is Harlan Kelly.  I stay at 3378 West Kearney Boulevard.


I just have one concern, and it’s the water quality of our underground drinking water.  In 2000, I had my well tested, and it had a high level of BBCP, which was 0.2, which was the maximum contamination allowed.  We also did a _____ analysis on property that metropolitan control on, and the results was over 180 milligrams of nitrate, which is way, way up there.


And so, my concern is that we need to have this water tested again to find out what the lead contents is.  We never did get an analysis on that.  So, that would be my concern since I live out in that area.


 SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’ll try to get that answer to you.  Thank you very much.


Any other comments from the public?  Come on up.  Anybody else after this?  Seeing and hearing none—okay.  Thanks for joining us.  If you could just give us your name.


MR. CRAIG KEELER:  Craig Keeler.  I’m fuel supply manager for a couple of biomass plants in the area, and I’ll be very brief.


I had to say one thing.  I go to Mendota all the time.  Thank you for your efforts on Highway 180.  It’s just been great.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.  Tell the Governor to put the money back, and we’ll be in good shape.


MR. KEELER:  One fire at a time, Senator Florez.  Thank you for asking again.


The only thing I’d like to say is what may have been a lack of enforcement on this issue and bring one thing to light too.  There’s different types of wood yards, and it really hurt me to see Mr. Crippen’s fire labeled as a woodpile fire, because it had a little more to do with some other contamination, some other issues which I’m sure you’re aware.  In normal wood yards, it’s brush, tree service material, and wood.  Very inert when you really look at it and if they’re run properly and maintained correctly.


I just wanted to say real quick, I hope that this focus on the LEA side of this doesn’t turn the LEAs loose on the wood processors in the area to the point that it shuts them down.  Sure, I’m all for proper permitting, but what may have been a lack of enforcement over several years to come into a point where, hey, you’re out, you’re out, you’re out, these people are good businessmen in many cases and responsible and trying to run an operation and maybe make a dime out of it.


So, I’ve said more than I needed to.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Any other comments?


Okay, the hour of nine thirty has arrived, and I’m sorry to go a half hour over.  I want to thank everyone for coming this evening.  Obviously, we’ve heard a lot about the fire tonight.  I do want to make sure everyone understands a transcript will be available from this particular hearing as soon as we process it in Sacramento.  


And I also want to say that the purpose of this hearing, obviously, was to gather as many facts as possible.  The air in Fresno, as you probably know, is bad enough already.  When we have to deal with disasters like this, obviously, it becomes much tougher.  I think we have a pretty good picture of what went wrong here tonight, and I think the information that we’ve gathered will allow us to prevent, hopefully, at the state level and put some preventive measures in this; and I hopefully think that we can move forward.


I would like to say that our next hearing of this committee is at nine thirty Friday, February 28th, I believe which is next week—just next week—at the San Joaquin Air District in Fresno.  That hearing will focus in on the issues of missing federal deadlines in terms of our quest to clean the air in the Central Valley.  The next meeting will be on March 7th in Bakersfield at the Ag Pavilion.  That hearing will be held and be titled, “Agriculture and Air Pollution in the Central Valley.”  


As you probably know, this committee has many hearings planned.  We will move through this as much as possible with special hearings such as this.  The next special hearing we probably will have will be on biomass facilities in the Central Valley, their ownership by LA companies, and what it means to our farmers in terms of taking their product to market.  We will probably have that again in Fresno, so we may indulge the mayor and the city council to allow us to use this very fine facility.  It’s a great facility.  Or we ask RCAO to let us utilize the county.


So, given that, I do want to thank everyone for coming tonight, especially those who gave testimony and stuck around, and we will adjourn this hearing.


Thank you very much.
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